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POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

APPROVAL AND CERTIFICATION

| am responsible for the preparation of these annual financial statements, which are
set out on pages 2 to 67, in terms of Section 126(1) of the Municipal Finance
Management Act and which | have signed on behalf of the Municipality.

| certify that the salaries, allowances and benefits of Councillors as disclosed in note
5 of these annual financial statements are within the upper limits of the framework
envisaged in Section 219 of the Constitution, read with the Remuneration of Public
Officer Bearers Act and the Minister of Cooperative Governance and Traditional
Affairs determination in accordance with this Act.

Ms TC Mametja
MUNICIPAL MANAGER DATE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions
{inventories

Investmenis

Current portion of receivables

VAT receivable

Total Current Assets

Non-current assets

Non-current receivables

Investmenis

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment properly carried at fair value
Biological assets

Total Non-current assets

Total Assets

{LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Caonsumer deposits

Current porticn of unspent conditional grants and receipts
Current portion of borrowings

Current portion of finance lease liability

Total Current Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

ENon-current borrowings

Non-current finance lease liability

Non-current Provisions

Total Non-current Liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

INET ASSETS
Housing Development
Revaluation Reserves
Accumulated surplus

Total net assets

Note 2012 2011
15 11,273,530 5,241,310
12 263,452,951 207,673,599
13 14,061,582 5,169,269
B 60,155,470 53,879,838
9 223,808,054 219,993,222
10 7,502,238 21,371,735
14 65,008,014 15,295,767
646,161,938 528,545,260
10 8,667,466 5,396,949
9 67.217.189 8,217,389
8 5,573,512,085 5,437,403,528
8.1 34,427 631 41,185,281
8.2 138,359,867 138,350,667
8.3 7,504,647 14,606,203
5 529,489,585 5.648,172,406
6,475,651,524 6,176,817,667
6 218,418,045 180,308,585
5 52,072,194 57 596,427
7 174,566,948 166,832,457
4 45,807,907 26,578,289
a8 2,597,004 3,969,296
103,463,008 435,285,063
4 298 587,916 254,480,801
38 - 2,597,004
35 177,751,749 158,810,424
476,339,665 415,868,228
969,802,763 851,173,282
5,505,848,761 5,325,644,385
2 11,247,728 11,155,453
3 770,838,771 770,838,771
4,723,762,262 4,543 650,161

5,505,848,761

5.325,644,385




POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

REVENUE

Property rates

Service charges

Rental of facilities

Investment Revenue — external investments
Interest earned — outstanding debtors

Fines

Licenses and permits

Income for agency services

Government grants recognised - operating
Government grants recognised - capital

Public contributions, donated and contributed property,

plant and equipment
Other revenue

Tofal Revenue

EXPENDITURE

Employee related costs
Remuneration of councillors
Bad debts

Collection costs
Depreciation

Repairs and majntenance
Finance cost

Bulk purchases

Grants and subsidies paid
General expenses

Total Expenditure

Less: Impairment loss
NET SURPEUS FOR THE YEAR

Note

17
18
19
22

20
20

21
23

24
25
12

26
27
28
29

44

2012

229 422 699
781 281 433
5509 961
24 554 083
17 678 491
4 496 562
8234 418
13 827 380
367 484 803

- 213510598

36 649 036
95 839 625

1798 439 499

389 033 020
20614731
38 191 993

817 561

231 234 348
86 881 354
29 426 803

518 796 538

6121695

281 118 928

1622 257 011

1,202,184

__175030294

2011

211 929 612
620 813 560
4 336 869

8§ 732113
20 190077
4796 811

8 065 163
13 460 412
358 908 608
127 554 532

3528 444
72568 750

1454 885 953

362171 819
19778 889
47 599 028

1463112

176 460 819
95 300 758
13072740

418 402 194

240 000

239 712 809

1374 202 171

___ soee3zaz
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POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

2012
Note R

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipted from ratepayers, government and others 1 567 135 930

2011

1460 078 412

Cash paid to suppliers and employees {1224 033 638) (11863 088 200}
Cash generated from operations 3 343 102 292 296 990 212
Interest received 42 232 584 28 922 190
Finance cost (29 426 803) {13 072 740}
Net cash from operating activities 355 908 072 312 839 662

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

(346 104 0286)

(276 861 457)

Purchase of intangible assets {8 399 378) (11 024 640)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1847 330
(Increase)/decrease in non-current receivables 13 598 280 2690273
(Increase)/decrease in non-current investments (58 999 800) Q
{Increase)/decrease in current investments (3814 832) (160 993 422)
Net cash from investment activities {403 719 056) (444 341 916)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increasef(decrease) in long term loans 53336733 230277 095
Increase/{decrease) in deposits 4 475768 5759 569
Decrease in finance lease liability (3 969 295) (3 642 856)
Net cash from financing activities 53 843 206 232 393 808
Increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6 632 222 100 891 555
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 15 5241 310 (95 650 243)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 15 11 273 530 5241 310




POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

Accounting Policies
1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statemenis

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of
Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) prescribed by the Minister of Finance in
terms of General Notice 991 and 992 of 2005. These annual financial statements have been
prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost
convention unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied, are
disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.1 Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and
related disciosures. Use of available information and the application of judgment is inherent
in the formation of estimates. Actual resuits in the future could differ from these estimates
which may be material to the annual financial staternents. Significant judgments include:

Trade receivables / Held to maturity investments andlor loans and receivables

The municipality assesses its loans and receivables for impairment at each statement of
statement of financial performance, the municipality makes judgments as to whether there

_is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from
a financial asset.

The impairment for loans and receivables is calculated on a pertfolio basis, based on
historical loss ratios, adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions and
other indicators présent at the reporting date that correlate with defaulis on the portfolio.
These annual loss ratios are apptied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to the
estimated loss emergence period.

Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete stock

An aliowance for stock to write stock down to the lower of cost or net realisable value
Management have made estimates of the selling price and direct cost to sell on certain
inventory items.

The write down is included in the impairment of assets nate.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and
available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the statement of financial

position date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the municipality is
the current bid price. The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and
payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities
for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future coniractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the municipality for similar financial
instruments. )

Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been
determined based on the higher of value-in-use calculations and fair vaiues. These
calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is reasonably possible that the



POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

assumption may change which may then impact our estimations and may then require a
material adjustment to the carrying value of goodwill and tangible assets.

The municipality reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in
circumstances suggest that the camying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are
grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of cash
flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have
occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets.
Expecled future cash flows used to determine the vaiue in use of goodwill and tangible
assets are inherently uncertain and coukd materially change over time. They are significantly
affected by a number of factors including production estimates, supply and demand, fogether
with economic factors such as exchange rates, inflation and interest rates.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information
available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in note 36 -
Provisions.

Useful lives of waste and water network and other assets

The municipality's management determines the estimated useful lives and refated
depreciation charges for the waste water and water networks. This estimate is based on
indusiry nomn. Management will increase the depreciafion charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated useful lives.

Post-retirement benefits

The present value of the post retirement obligation depends on a number of factors that are
determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) include the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post retirement obligations.

The municipality determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is
the interest rate that shouid be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash
outflows expected o be required to settle the pension obligations. In determining the
appropriate discount rate, the municipality considers the interest rates of high-quality

corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based on current market conditions.
Additional information is disciosed in Note 22.

Effective interest rate

The municipality used the prime interest rate to discount future cash flows.

Aliowance for doubtful debts

On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective
evidence that it is impaired. The impairment is measured as the difference between the
debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.

1.2 Presentation of Currency

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand which is the
functional currency of the municipality.



POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

1.3 Going concern assumption

In terms of the accouniing standard GRAF 1 paragraphs 27 t¢ 30 the annuat financial
statementis are prepared an a going concem basis. The assumption is based on the fact that
the municipality may invoke its power to levy additional rates or taxes to enable the
municipality to be considered as a going concemn even though the municipality will be
operational for extended periods with negative net assets.

However based on the current solvency and liquidity ratio’s tests performed, the
municipality's ability to operate as a going concem is under threat.

1.4.1 Housing development fund

The Housing Development Fund was established in terms of the Housing Act, (Act No. 107
of 1997). Loans from national and provincial government used fo finance housing selling
schemes undertaken by the municipality were terminated on 1 April 1998 and transferred to
a Housing Development Fund. Housing selfing scheme, both complete and in progress as at
1 April 1998, were also transferred to the Housing Development Fund. In terms of the
Housing Act, all proceeds from housing developments, which include rental income and
sales of houses, must be paid into the Housing Development Fund. Monies standing to the
credit of the Housing Development Fund can be used only fo finance housing developments
within the municipal area subject to the approval of the Provincial MEC responsible for
housing.

1.4.2 Revaluation Reserve

. The surplus arising from the revaluation of land and buildings is credited to a revaluation
reservé. The revaluation surplus is realised as re~valued buildings are depreciated,
through a transfer from the revaluation reserve to the accumutated surplus/(deficit). On

_ disposal, the net revatuation surplus is transferred to the accumulated surplusf{deficit)
while gains or losses on disposal, based on re-valued amounts, are credited or charged
to the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.5 Investment property
Initial Recognition:

Investment property includes property (land or a building, or part of a building, or both land
or buildings held under a finance lease) held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than held to meet service delivery objectives, the production or supply of goods or
services, of the sale of an asset in the ordinary course of operations. At initial recognition,
the Municipality measures investment property at cost including transaction costs once it
meets the definition of investment property. However, where an investment property was
acquired through a non-exchange transaction (i.e. where it acquired the investment property
for no or a nominal value), its cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. The cost of
seif-constructed investment property is the cost at date of completion

Subsequent Measurement:
Investment property is measured at fair value. After initial recognition all investment property-

is measured at fair value at each Statement of financial position date. No depreciation is
calculated on these properfies.

1.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure
assets) that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental 1o

10



POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one
pertod.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

- itis probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated
with the item wili flow to the municipality; and
- the cost of the item can be measured reliably

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs atfributable to bring the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired at fo cost, or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at
date of acquisition. Where an item of property, plant and eguipment is acquired in exchange
for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and non-
monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value {the cost). if the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, if's deemed cost is the carrying amount of
the assei(s) given up. ‘

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items {major components) of property, plant
and equipment. .

Costs inciude costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and
equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add fo, replace part of, or service it. If a
replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site
on which it is located is also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the
entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the abligation arises as a resul of
acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment
ceases when the itlem is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.

Maijor spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than one
period are included in property, plant and equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand by
equipment which can only be used in connection with an item of property, plant and
equipment are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant
and equipment and which meet the recognition critetia above are included as a replacement
in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining inspection costs from
the previous inspection are derecognised. -

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses except for land and buildings which is carried at re-vatued amount being
the fair value at the date of revaluation fess any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ

materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting
period.

il



POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

When an item of property, plant and equipment is re-valued, any accumutated depreciation
at the date of the revaluation is restated proportionately with the change in the gross carrying
amount of the asset so that the carrying amount of the asset after re-vatuation equals its re-
valued amounit.

Any increase in an asset's carrying amount, as a result of a revatuation, is credited directly to

a re-valuation surplus. The increase is recognised in surptus or deficit to the extent that it

reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in surplus or
deficit.

Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in
surpius or deficit in the current period. The decrease is debited directly to a revaluation
surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of
that asset. The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, piant and
equipment is transferred directly to retained eamings when the asset is derecognised.

The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment
is transferred directly to retained garnings as the asset is used. The amount transferred is
equal to the difference between depreciation based on the re-valued carrying amount and
depreciation based on the original cost of the asset.

.Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight fine basis over their expected
useful lives 1o their estimated residual value, Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost
less accumutated depreciation and any impaired costs.

The useful lives of items of properly, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:-

liem Average useful life

Infrastructure

- Roads and paving 30 years
-> Pedestrian malls 5 years
- Electricity 20-30 years
- Sewerage 15-20 years
> Water 15-20 years
- Housing 30 years
- Refuse sites 15 years
Community

- Recreational facilities 20 - 30 years

- Cemeteries 30 years

= Halls 30 years

- Libraties 30 years

- Parks and gardens 10 - 30 years

- Fire services ' 30 years

- Clinics 20 - 30 years

- Sport fields 20 - 30 years
Other

- Motor vehicles 5 years

-» Plant and equipment 2-15 years

- Security measures 3-10 years

-> Buildings 30 years

-> Specialised vehicles 10 years

> 1T equipment . 3-5 years

> Office equipment ) 3-7 years

12



POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

Land is not depreciated as it is regarded as having an infinite useful life.

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the
end of sach reporting date. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is
accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. Each part of an item of property, plant
and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is
included in the carrying amount of another asset. :

ltemns of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or
when there are nio further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of
the asset. :

The gairt or loss arising from the de-recognition of an item of Intangible assets is included in
surplus or deficit when the items derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the de-
recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

Assets which the municipality holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as
part of the ordinary course of activities are transfetred to inventories when the rentals end
and the assets are available-for-sale. These assets are not accounted for as non-current
assets held for sale. Proceeds from sales of these assets are recognised as revenue. All
cash flows on these assets are included in cash fiows from operating activiies in the cash
flow statement.

1.7 Biclogical Assets
Initial Recognition
A biological asset or agricultural produce is recognised when, and only when:

- the municipality controls the asset as a result of past events;

= ilis probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow
o the municipality

-»and the fair value or cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Subsequent Measurement:
Biological assets are measured at their fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs.

The fair value of livestock is determined based on market prices of livestock of similar
age, breed, and genetic merit. The fair valuz of milk is determined based on market
pricas in the local area. The fair value of the vine / pine plantations is based on the
combined fair value of the land and the vines / pine trees. The fair value of the raw
land and land improvements is then deducted from the combined fair value fo
determine the fair value of the vines / pine trees.

A gain or loss arising on initial recognition of agricultural produce at fair value less
estimated point-of-sale costs is included in profit or loss for the period in which it
arises.

Where market determined prices or values are not available, the present value of the
expected net cash inflows from the asset, discounted at a current market-determined
pre-tax rate is used to determine fair value.

An unconditional government grant related o a biological asset measured at its fair

value Jess estimated point-of-sale costs is recognised as income when the
government grant becomes receivable.

13



POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

Where fair valug cannct be measured reliably, biologicat assets are measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided on biclogical assets where fair value cannot be determined,
to write down the cost, less residual value. The annual depreciation rates are based
on the following estimated average asset lives:

1.8 Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost at reporting date comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The cost of
inventories is assigned using the firstin, first-out (FIFO) formula. The same cost formula is
used for all inventories having a similar nature and use to the entity. ’

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an
expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, are recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal oCCuUrs.

Redundant and slow-moving invenfories are identified and written down from cost to net
realisable value with regard to their estimated economic or realisable values.

Unsold properties are at the lower cost and net realisable value. Direct cost are accurﬁulated
for each separately identifiable development. Cost also includes a portion of the overhead
costs.

1.9 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial fiability or a residual interest of another entity. The amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability

is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amotmnt
and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an
allowance account) for impairment or un-collectability.

A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by an entity on ferms that are not
market related. Crediit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a
financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Currency risk is the risk
that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreigh exchange rates.

De-recognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability
from an entity’s statement of financial position. The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability {or group of financial,
assets or financial liabiliies) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimatad
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash
flows considering all confractual ferms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment,

call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The caleulation includes
all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate, (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange
Transactions) transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption
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that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be
estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate
the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of financial
instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of
the finaneial instrument {or group of financial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled,
between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's fength transaction.

A financial asset is:

- cash;
- a residual interest of another entity; or
- a contractual right to:

-> receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under
conditions that are potentially favourable to the entity.

- A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debfor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or madified terms of a debt
instrument.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:

- deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially
" unfavourable to the.entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Liguidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial fiabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. Loan commitment is a firm commitment fo provide credit under pre-specified
terms and conditions.

Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. Other price risk is the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific fo the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or
factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when
contractually due. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial fiability. An incrementa! cost is
one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of
the financial instrument.

" Financial instruments at amortised cost are nan-derivative financiat assets or non-detivative
sinancial labilities that have fixed or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:
- the entity designates at fair value af initial recognition; or

-» are held for trading.

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do nothave a quoted
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market price in an active market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.
Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are:

-» derivatives;

-> combined instruments that are designated ai fair value;

- instruments heid for trading. A financial instrument is held for frading if:

- - it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in
the neartenm; or

- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattem of short
term profit-taking;

- non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable
payments thai are deSignated at fair value at initial recognition; and

- financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at
amortised cost or financial instruments at cost. ’

Classification

The municipality has the following types of financial assets (classes and category} as
reflected on the face of the statement of financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category

Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at amortised cost Trade and other
receivables from non-exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amoriised cost
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions Financial asset measured at
amortised cost

Long term receivables Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The municipality has the following types of financial liabilities {classes and category) as
reflected on the face of the statement of financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category

Long term liabilities Financial fiability measured at amortised cost

Trade and other payables Financial liability measured at amortised cost

Initial recognition

The eniity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial
position when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The enlity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of the'financial asset
or financiat liability. The entity first assesses whether the substance of a concessionary its

loan is in fact a loan. On initial recognition, the entity analyses a concessiconary foan into its component
parts and accounts for each component separately.

The entity accounts for that part of a concessionary loan that is:

- a social benefit in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and
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Presentation of Financial Statements, where it is the issuer of the loan; or
= non-exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenus from
Non exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures ali financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using
the following categories: .

= Financial instruments at fair value.
- Financial instruments at amortised cost.
= Financial instruments at cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.
Fair value measurement considerations

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a
financial instrument is not active, the enfity establishes fair vaiue by using a valuation

technique. The objective of using a valuation technique is to establish what the transaction
price would have been on the measurement date in an arm's length exchange motivated by
normal operating considerations. Valuation technigues include using recent arm’s length
market fransactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, if available, reference to the
current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation technique commonly used by
markst participants fo price the instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to
provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market fransactions, the entity uses
that technique. The chosen valuation technigue makes maximum use of market inputs and:
refies as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that market
participants would consider in setting a price and is consistent with accepted economic
methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, an entity calibrates the
valuafion technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market
transactions in the same instrument {i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on
any available observable market data. The fair value of a financial liability with a demand
feature {e.q. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount payable on demand, discounted
from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid.

Regclassification
The entity does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:

- combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or
> an investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification.

Where the enlity cannot reliably measure the fair vaiue of an embedded derivative that has
been separated from a host contract that is a financial instrument at a subsequent reporting
date, it measures the combined instrument at fair value.

This requires a reclassification of the instrument from amortised cost or cost fo fair value.
If fair value can no longer be measured refiably for an investment in a residual interest
measured at fair value, the entity reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The
carrying amount at the date that fair value is no longer available becomnes the cost.

If a reliable measure becomes available for an investment in a residual interest for which a
measure was previously not available, and the instrument would have been required to be
measured at fair value, the entity reclassifies the instrument from cost to fair value.

Gains and losses

A gain or loss arising from 2 change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability
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measured at fair value is recognised in surplus or deficit. For financial assets and financiat
iiabitities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or
deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through
the ameortisation process.

Impairment and un-collectability of financial assets

The entity assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any obiective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment ioss on financial assets measured at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of

estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced directly OR through the use of an aliowance account. The amount of the
loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impaiment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed directly OR by adjusting an allowance
account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that
excoeds what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised
at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus
or deficit.

Financial assets measured at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in
a residual interest that is not measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be
measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment losses are not reversed.

De-recognition

Financial assets

The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:

- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are seftled or
waived;

- the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset; or

= the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, has transferred confrol of the asset to another party and the other
pariy has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party,
and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing fo impose
additional restrictions on the fransfer. In this case, the entity derecognise the asset and
recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

The canying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations
retained and those transferred on the basis of their relative fair values at the fransfer date.
Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair values at that date. Any
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difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and
derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

If the entity transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for de-recognition in its
antirety and retains the right to service the financial asset for a fee, it recognise either a
servicing asset or a servicing lizbility for that servicing contract. if the fee to be received is
not expected to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing
liability for the servicing obligation is recogrised at its fair value. if the fee to be received is
expected to be more than adequate compensation for the servicing, a servicing asset is
recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocation of
the carrying amount of the larger financial asset.

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer
resulis in the entity obtaining a new financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a
servicing liability, the entity recognise the new financial asset, financial liability or servicing
liability at fair value.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part fransferred qualifies for
de-recognition in its entirely, the previous carrying amount of the larger firiancial asset is
aliocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is
derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer.
For this purpose, a retained servicing asset is treated as a part that continues fo be
recognised. The difference between the carrying amount aliocated to the part derecognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in
surplus or deficit.

If a transfer does not result in de-recognition because the entity has retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the fransferred asset, the entity continue to recognise
the transferred asset in ils entirety and recognise a financial liability for the consideration
received. In subsequent periods, the entity recognises any revenue on the transferred

asset and any expense incured on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the
associated liability nor the revenue, and the associated expenses are offset.

Financial liabilities

The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of
financial position when it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelied, expires or waived.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially
different terms is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability and a
new financiai liability is recognised. Similafy, a substantial modification of the terms of an
sxisting financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original
financial ability and having recognised a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial
liability) extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in surplus or deficit,
Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a non-
exchange transaction are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on
Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers).

Presentation

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability.is
recognised as revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.
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Dividends or similar distributions relating to a financial instrument or a component thatis a
financial liabifity is recognised as revenue or expense in surplus or deficit. Losses and gains
relating 1o a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as
revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.

Distributions 1o holders of residual interests are debited by the entity directly 1o net assets,
net of any related income tax benefit [where applicable]. Transaction costs incurred on
residual interests is accounted for as a deduction from net assets, net of any related income
tax benefit jwhere applicable].

Afinancial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the
staternent of financial position when the enfity currently has a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts and iniends either to setfle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that
does not qualify for de-recognition, the entity does not offset the transferred asset and the
associated liability.

1.10 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gfoss inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting
period when those inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating o
contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has
liabilities extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of
goods, services or use of assets) fo the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settied,
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
trade discounts and volume rebates.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been
satisfied: )

-5 the municipality has transferred fo the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods;

- the municipality retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective contrel over the goods sold;
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

- itis probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the municipality; and

- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the fransaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated
reliably, revenue associated with the transaclion is recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be
estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably,

it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the municipality;
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- the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured
reliably; and

- the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can
be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time
frame, revenue is recognised on a straight line basis over the specified time frame unless
there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of completion. When a
specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is
postponed untit the significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are
recovarable. Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
transaction at the reporting date. Stage of completion is delermined by.

Interest, royalties and dividends

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalfies and
dividends is recognised when:

- It is probabie that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the

transaction will flow to the municipality, and
-5 The arnount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.
Royalties are recognised as they are eamed in accordance with the substance of the
relevant agreements.

Dividends, or their equivalents are recognised, in surplus or deficit, when the municipality’s
right to receive payment has been established.

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the periad
during which the service is performed.

1.11 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenus comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and
receivable by a municipality, which represents an increase in net assels, other than
increases relating to contributions from owners.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic
benefits or service potential embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the
recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned fo the
transferor.

Control of an asset arise when the municipality can use or otherwise bengfit from the asset
in pursuit of its objectives and canexclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that
benefit. :

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or
has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the
form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in exchange.

Fines are economic benefits or service potential received or receivable by entities, as
determined by a court or other law enforcement body, as a consequence of the breach of
laws or regulations.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-
exchange transaction, an municipality either receives value from another municipality without
directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another murnicipality
without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.
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Restrictions on transferred assets are stiputations that limit or direct the purposes for which a
transferred asset may be used, but do not specify that future econamic benefits or service

potential is required to be retumed to the transferor if not deployed as specified. Stipulations
on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed
upon the use of a transferred asset by entities external to the reporting municipality.

Taxes are economic benefits or service potential compulsorily paid or payable to entities, in
accordance with laws and or regulations, established to provide revenue to government.
Taxes do not include fines or other penalties imposed for breaches of the law.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential frorm non-exchange
transactions, other than taxes.

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is
recognised as revenue, except to the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of
the same inflow.

As the municipality satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an
inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the
canrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal to
that reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net
assets recognised by the municipality. When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the
municipality recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the amount of the
asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to
recognise a liability. Where a liability is required fo be recognised it will be measured as the
best estimate of the amount required to settie the obligation at the reporting date, and the
amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a lability is
subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or & condition is satisfied, the
amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.

Transfers

Apart from Services in kind, which are not recognised, the municipality recognises an asset
in respect of transfers when the fransferred resources meet the definition of an asset and
satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset. The municipality recognises an asset in

respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset

and satisfy the criteria for recogniﬁon as an asset. Transferred assets are measured at their
fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Fines
Fines are recognised as revenue when the receivable meets the definition of an asset and
satisfies the criteria for recognition as an asset. Assets arising from fines are measured at

the best estimate of the inflow of resources to the municipality. Where the municipality
collects fines in the capacity of an agent, the fine will not be revenue of the collecting entity.

Bequests

Bequests that satisfy the definition of an asset are recognised as assets and revenue when it
is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential wilt fiow to the municipality,
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and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.
Gifts and donations, including goods in-kind

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it
is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the municipality
and the fair vaiue of the assets can be measured reliably.

1.12 Conditional Grants and receipts

Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue
1o the extent that the municipality has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or
obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria, conditions or
obligations have not been met a liability is recognised.

1.13 Provisions and contingencies
_Provisions are recognised when:

- the municipality has a preseni obligation as a result of a past event;

-5 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service
potential will be required fo settle the obligation; and

-> a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

‘The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting date. Where the effect of time value of money is
material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required fo settle the obligation. The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reftects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks speific to the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be
reimbursed by ancther party, the reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is
virlually certain that reimbursement will be received if the municipality settles the obligation.
The reimbursemerit is tréated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is no longer probabie that an outflow of resources
smbodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the obligation.
Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to
reflect the passage of time. This increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditure for which the provision was originally recognised.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the
contract is recognised and measured as a provision. No obligation arises as a consequence
of the sale or transfer of an operation until the municipality is committed to the

sale or transfer, that is, there is a binding agreement.

After their initial recagnition contingent liabilities recognised in business combinations that
are recognised separately are subsequently measured at the higher of:

- the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
- the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in riote 33
1.14 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure means:
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- gverspending of a vote or a main division within a vote;
-> expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main
division, not in accordance with the purpese of the main division.

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
statement of financial performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The
expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recoverad,
it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.15 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management
Act {(Act No 56 of 2003), the Municipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000}, The Public Office
Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of the Municipality's supply chain
management policy. iregutar expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure.

irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial
Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

1.16 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruilless expenditure means expenditure which was made iri vain and would have been
avoided had reasonable.care been exercised. All expenditure refating to fruitiess and
wasleful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance
in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance
with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subseguently accounted for as
revenue in the statement of financial performance. )

1.17 Translation of foreign cumrencies
Foreign currency transactions

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Rand's, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the
foreign currency at the date of the transaction. Exchange diffefences arising on the
settlement of monetary itermns or on translating monetary items at rates different

from those at which they wers translated on initial recognition during the period or in
previous annual financial statements are recognised in surplus or deficit in the period in
which they arise.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised directly in equity, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised directly in equity. When a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in surplus or deficit, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognised in surpius or deficit.

Cash flows arising from fransactions in a foreign currency are recorded in Rand's by
applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate hetween the Rand and the
foreign currency at the dates of the cash flow

1.18 Comparative figures

Current year comparatives

Budgeted amounts have been included in the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the current financial year only.

Prior year comparatives

When presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is amended,
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prior period comparative amounts are restated. The nature and reason for the
reclassification is disclosed. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the
current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior
year comparatives are restated accordingly.

1.19 Leases

A lease-is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership. A iease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

Finance leases — lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position
at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is
the interest rate implicit in the lease. The lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is aliocated to
each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the
remaining balance of the liability.

Operafing leases — lessor

Operating lease income is recognised as an income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term
on the same basis as the lease income.

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in the statement of financial performance.
Operafing leases — lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. The difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the
contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset. This liability is not '
discounted.

Any confingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.

1.20 Intangible assets

An asset is identified as an intangible asset when it:

_is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred,

licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract,
assets or liability; or

. arises from contractual rights or other legal rights, regardless whether those rights .
are transferable or separate from the municipality or from other rights and :
obligations.

An intangible asset is recognised when:

= it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the
asset will flow to the entity; and
-5 the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

An intangible asset acauired at no or nominai cost, the cost shall be its fair value as at the
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date of acquisition.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as
an expsnse when it is incurred. An intangible asset arising from development (or from the
development phase of an internal project) is recognised wher:

= it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be availabie for use or
sale.

3 there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.

- there is an ability to use or sell it.

- it will generate probable future economic benefits.

= there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the asset.

-» the expenditure atributable to the asset during its development can be measurad
reliably. -

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amordisation and any impairment
losses. An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all
relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the assetis expected.
to generate net cash inflows. Amoriisation is not provided for these property, plant and
equipment. For all other intangible asscts amortisation is provided on a straight line basis
over their useful life. : '

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed
every period-end. Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a definite useful life
after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result
the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining camying amount is amortised over its
useful life.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing fitles, customer lists and items similar in
substance are not recognised as intangible assets.

Amortisation is provided fo write down the intangible assels, on a straight line basis, to their
residual vallies as follows:

Computer software, internally generated 3 - 5 years
Computer software, other 3 - 5 years

intangible assets are derecognised:

- ondisposal; or
- when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or
disposal.

1.21 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as "held for sale assets” if their carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale fransaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met onfy when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for
immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale,

which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification.

Non-current assets held for sale are meaéured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair
value less costs o sell. A non-current asset is depreciated (or amortised) while it is classified
as a "held for sale” asset.

Interest and other expenses attributable 1o the liabifities of the "held for sale assels” are
recognised in surplus or deficit.

1.22 Impairment of cash-generating assets
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Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the municipality with the primary objective
of generating a commercial return. When an asset is deployad in a manner consistent with
that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generaies a commerciai return,

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over
and above the systernatic recognition of the loss of the asset's future economic benefits or
service potential through depreciation {(amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial
position after deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impaimment losses
thereon. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets held with the
primary abjective of generating a commercial return that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset,
excluding finance costs and income tax expense.

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an
asset over its useful Jife.

Fair value less costs to sell'is the amount obtainable from the sale of an assetin an arm’s
length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.
Recoverable amount of an assef or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair vaiue less
costs to sell and its vaiue inuse.

Useful life is either:

> the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the municipality; or
- the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset
by the municipality.

identification

When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset excesds its recoverable amount, itis
impaired. The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication
that a cash-generating asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the municipality
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Value in use

Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash
fiows expected to be derived from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the
end of its useful life. When estimating the value in use of an asset, the municipality estimates
the future cash inflows and outflows to be derived from continuing use of the asset and from
its ultimate disposal and the municipality applies the appropriate discount rate to those future
cash flows.

Basis for estimates of future cash flows
In measuring value in use the municipality:

- base cash flow projections on reasonable and supportable assumptions that
represent management's best estimate of the range of economic conditions that will
exist over the remaining useful life of the asset. Greater weight is given to external
evidence; :

- base cash flow projections on the most recent approved financiat budgets/forecasts,
but excludes any estimated future cash inflows or outflows expected to arise from
future restructuring's or from improving or enhancing the asset's performance.
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Projections based on these hudgetsfforecasts covers a maximum period of five
years, unless a longer period can be justified; and

- estimate cash flow projections beyond the period covered by the most recent
pudgetsforecasts by exirapolating the projections based on the budgets/forecasts
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing
rate can be justified. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates,
or for the market in which the asset is used, unless a higher rate can be justified.

Composition of estimates of future cash flows
Estimates of future cash flows include:

- projections of cash inflows from the continuing use of the asset;

-> projections of cash outflows that are necessarily incurred to generate the cash
inflows from continuing use of the asset (including cash outflows to prepare the asset
for use) and can be directly attributed, or aliocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis, to the asset; and

> net cash flows, if any, to be received (or paid) for the disposal of the asset at the end
of its useful life.

Estimates of future cash flows exclude:

> cash inflows or outflows from financing activities; and
- income tax receipts or payments.

The estimate of net cash flows to be received (or paid) for the disposal of an asset at the end
of its useful life is the amount that the municipality expects to obtain from the disposal of the
asset in an amm's length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, after deducting
the estimated costs of disposal.

Cash-generating units

If there is any indication that an assét may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated
for the individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the
individual asset, the municipality determines the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs {the asset's cash-generating unit).

If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assets, that asset
or group of assets is identified as a cash-generating unit, even if some or all of the output is
used intemally. ¥ the cash inflows generated by any asset or cash-generating unit are
affected by internal transfer pricing, the municipality use management's best estimate of
future price(s) that could be achieved in arm’s length transactions in estimating:

= the future cash inflows used to determine the asset's or cash-generating unit's value
in use; and

- the future cash outflows used to determine the value in use of any other assets or
cash-generating units that are affected by the internal transfer pricing.

Cash-generating units are identified consistently from period to period for the same asset or
types of assets, unless a change is justified. The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit
is determined on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of

the cash-generating unit is determined. An impairment l0ss is recognised for a cash-
generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying

amount of the unit. The impairment is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cash-
generating assets of the unit on a pro rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. These reductions in carrying amounts are treated as impairment losses on
individual assets. ’

I allocating an impairment loss, the entity does not reduce the carrying amount of an asset
below the highest of: .
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- its fair value less costs to sell (f determinable);
- its valug in use (if deferminable); and
- Zero.

The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other cash-generating assets of the unit. Where a non-cash-
generating asset contributes o a cash-generating unit, a proportion of the carrying amount
of that noncash-generating asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating
unit prior to estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit.

Reversal of impairment loss

The municipality assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable
amount of that asset.

_ An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used fo determine the asset's recoverable amount
since the last impairment foss was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is
increased fo its. recoverabie amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The
increased carrying amount of an asset atfributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined {net of depreciation or
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised far the.asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in
surplus or deficit. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a re-valued cash-generating assetis
treated as a revaluation increase.

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge
for the cash-generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating
asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value {if any}, on a systematic basis over
its remaining useful life. A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is
allocated to the cash-generating assets of the unit pro rata with the camrying amounts of
those assets. These increases in carrying amounts are treated as reversals of impairment
losses for individual assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is aliocated to a non-
cash-generating asset contributing service potential to a cash-generating unit.

In aliocating a reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount
of an asset is not increased above the lower of;

-> its recoverable amount (if determinable); and
- the canrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

The amount of the reversal of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is aliocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit.

Re-designation

.

The re-designation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset
or from a non-cash-generating asset to a cash-generating asset only occur when thers is
clear evidence that such a re-designation is appropriate.

1.23 Employee benefits
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Employee benefits are ail forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service
rendered by employees. A qualifying insurance poficy is an insurance policy issued by an
insurar that is not a related party (as defined in the Standard of GRAP on Related Party
Disclosures) of the reporting entity, if the proceeds of the policy can be used only to pay or
fund employee benefits under a defined benefit plan and are not available to the reporting
entity's own creditors (even in liquidation) and cannot be paid to the reporting entity, unless
either:

= the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy fo meet all
the related employee benefit obligations; or

-> the proceeds are retumed to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee henefits
already paid.

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:

- an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal
retirement date; or

- an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those
benefits.

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits {other than post-employmennt
benefits and termination benefits) that are not due to be settled within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional on future
employment. Composite social security programmes are established by legislation and
operate as multi-employer plans to provide post-employment benefits as well as to provide
benefits that are not consideration in exchange for service rendered by employees.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an
eslablished pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current
statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities
and as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other
parties that it wili discharge those responsibilities.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-lerm employee benefits are employee benefits {other than termination benefits) that
are due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:

- wages, salaries and social security contributions;

- short-term compensated absences (such as paid annuat ieave and paid sick leave)
where the compensation for the absences is due to be setiled within twelve months
after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related

employee service;

- bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months
the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related
service; and

- non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or
services such as housing, cars and cell phones) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity
recognise the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service:

- as a liability (accrued expense}, after deducting any amount already paid. If the

mount already paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity
recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) fo the extent that the-
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orepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash
refund; and

- as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the
employees render services that increase their entittement or, in the case of non-
accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measure the expected cost of
accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay
as a result of the unused entitiement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance refated
payments when the entity has a present legat or constructive obligation to make such
payments as a result of past events and a rsliable estimate of the obligation can be made. A
present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic altemative but to make the
payments.

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits {other than termination benefits) which are
payable after the completion of employment. Post-employment benefit plans are formal or
informal arrangements under which an entity provides post-employment benefits for one or
more.employees. :

Post-employment benefits: Defined confribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior pericds.

When an employee has rendered service to the enfity during a reporting period, the entity
recognise the contribution payabie to a defined contribution pian in exchange for that
service:

> as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for service before the
reporting date, an eniity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the
extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments
or a cash refund; and .

- as an expense, untess another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the
contribution in the cost of an asset. :

Where contributions to a defined contribution plan da not fall due wholly within twelve
months after the end of each reporting period in which the employees render the retated
service, they are discounted. The rate used to discount reflects the time value of money. The
currency and term of the financial instrument selecied fo reflect the time value of money is
consistent with the currengy and estimated term of the obligation.

Post-employment benefits: Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution
plans. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments (the effects of
differences between the previous actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred) and
the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions. In measuring its defined benefit liability the
municipality recognise actuarial gains and losses in surplus or deficit in the reporting period
in which they oceur.

Assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund are assets {other than non-transferable

- financial instruments issued by the reporting municipality) that are held by an municipality (a
_ fund) that is legally separate from the reporting municipality and exists solely to pay or fund
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employee benefits and are available io be used only fo pay or fund employee benefits, are
not available to the reporting municipality’s own creditars (even in fiquidation), and cannot be
retumed to the reporting municipatity, unless either:

- the remaining assets of the fund are sufficient to meet all the related employee
benefit obligations of e plan or the reporting municipality; or

- the assets are returmned to the reporting municipalify to reimburse it for employee
benefits already paid.

Current service cost is the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from employee service in the current period. Interest cost is the increase during a
period in the present value of a defined benefit obligation which arises because the
benefits are one period closer fo settlement. -

Past service cost is the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for
employee service in prior periods, resulting in the current period from the introduction of, or
changes to, post-employment benefits or other long-term employee benefits. Past service
cost may be either positive (when benefits are introduced or changed sa that the present
value of the defined benefit obligation increases) or negative (when existing benefits are
changed so that the present value of the defined benefit obligation decreases). In measuring
its defined benefit liability the entity recognise past service cost as an expense in the
reporting period in which the plan is amended.

Plan assets comprise assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund and gualifying
instrance policies. The present value of a defined benefit obligation is the present value,
without deducfing any plan assets, of expecied future payments Tequiredto settie the
obligation resulting from employee service in the current and prior periods.

The retun on plan assets is interest, dividends and other revenue derived from the plan
assels; together with realised and unrealised gains or losses an the plan assets, less any
costs of administering the plan (other than those included in the actuarial assumptions used
to measure the defined benefit obligation) and less any tax payable by the plan itself.

The entity account not only for its legal obligation under the formal terms of & defined benefit
plan, but also for any constructive obligation that arises from the municipality's informal
practices. Informal practices give rise to a constructive obligation where the municipality has
no realistic alternative but to pay employee benefits. An example of a constructive obligation
is where a change in the municipality's informal practices would cause unacceptable
damage fo its relationship with employees.

The amount recognised as a defined benefit liability is the net total of the following amounts:

- the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date;

- minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the
obligations are to be setfled directly;

= plus any liability that may arise as a result of 3 minimum funding requirement

The amount determined as a defined benefit liability may be negative (an asset). The
municipality measure the resulting asset at the lower of:

-» the amount determined above; and

- the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the
plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. The present value of these
economic benefits is determined using a discount rate which reflects the time value
of money.

Any adjustments arising from the limit above is recognised in surplus or deficit.
The municipality determine the present value of defined benefit obligations and the fair value
of any plan assets with sufficient regularity such that the amounts recognised in the annual

financial statements do not differ materially from the amounts that would be determined at
the reporting date. The municipality recogrises the net total of the following amounts in
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surplus or deficit, except to the extent that another Standard requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset:

- current service cost;

- interest cost;

- the expected retum on any plan assets and on any reimbursement rights;
-» actuarial gains and losses;

- past service cost;

-» the effect of any curtailments or settlements; and

- the effect of applying the limit on a defined benefit asset (negativé defined benefit liability)

The municipality uses the Projected Unit Credit Method to determine the present value of its
defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and, where applicable, past
service cost, The Projected Unit Credit Method (sometimes known as the accrued benefit
method pro-rated on service or as the benefitfyears of service method) sees each period of
service as giving rise to an additional unit of bensfit entitlernent and measures each unit
separately to build up the final obligation.

In determining the present value of its defined benefit obligations and the related current
service cosl and, whers applicable, past service cost, an municipality shall attribute benefit
to periods of service under the plan’'s benefit formuta. However, if an employee’s service in
later years will lead to a materially higher level of benefit than in earlier years, an municipality
shall atfribute benefit on a straight-ling basis from: '

- the date when service by the employee first leads to benefits under the plan (whether
or not the benefits are conditional on further service); until

- the date when furiher service by the employee will lead to no material amount of
further benefits under the plan, other than from further salary increases.

Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately
for each plan. The results of the valuation are updated for any material transactions and
other material changes in circumstances (including changes in market prices and interest
rates) up to the reperting date.

The municipality recognises gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a ¢efined
benefit plan when the curtaiiment or settiement occurs. The gain or foss on a curtaitment or
settlement comprises:

> any resulting change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation; and
- any resulting change in the fair value of the plan assets.

Before determining the effect of a curtailment or settlement, the municipality re-measure the
obligation (and the related plan assets, if any) using current actuarial assumptions (including
current market interest rates and other current market prices). When it is virtually certain that
another party will reimburse some ar all of the expenditure required to settle a defined
benefit obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is
measured at fair value. In all other respects, the asset is treated in the same way as plan
assets. In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit plan is [OR is not]
presented as the net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement.

The municipality offsets an asset relating to one plan against a liability relating to another
plan when the municipality has a legally enforceable right to use a surplus in one plan to
settle obligations under the other plan and intends either to settle the obligations on a net
basis, or to realise the surplus in one plan and settle its obligation under the other plan
simultaneously.

Actuarial assumptions
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Actuarial assumptions are unbiased and mutually compatible.

Financiai assumptions are based on market expectations, at the reporting date, for the
period over which the obligations are to be settled. The rate used to discount post-
employment benefit abligations (both funded and unfunded} reflect the time value of money.

The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of monsey
is consistent with-the currency and estimated term of the post-employment benefit
obligations.

Post-employment benefit obligations are measured on a basis that reflects:

-» estimated future salary increases;

-3 the henefits set out in the terms of the plan {or resulting from any constructive
obligation that goes beyond those terms) at the reporting date; and

- estimated future changes in the levet of any state benefits that affect the benefits
payable under a defined benefit plan, if, and only i, either:

- those changes were enacted before the reporting date; or -

= past history, or other reliable evidence, indicates that those state benefits will change
in some predictable manner, for example, in ine with future changes in general price
levels or general salary levels. :

Assumptions about medical costs take account of estimated future changes in the cost of
medical services, resulting from both inflation and specific changes in medical costs.

Pension Obligations: The municipality and its employees contriibute to & different Pension

Funds, of which 3 (The Municipal Employees Pension Fund, Municipal Gratuity. Fund and

Samwu National Provident Fund) cater for the majority of the staff. The Joint Municipal Pension

Fund, Municipal Employees Pension Fund, Municipal Gratuity Fund, Samwu National Provident Fund,
and National Fund for Municipal Workers are defined contribution funds.

The schemes are funded through payments to financial consultant companies or trustee-
administered funds, determined by perodic actuarial calculations. The Municipality has both
defined benefit and defined contribution plans. A defined benefit pian is a pension plan that
defines an amaount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation. A
defined coniribution plan is a pension plan under which the Municipality pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Municipality has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Municipality pays contributions to publicty or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Municipality has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
confributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund ora reduction in
the future payments is available.

1.24 Investment income

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

1.25 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable fo the acquisition, construction or production: of
a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that assel until such time as the asset
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is ready for its intended use. The amount of borrowing costs efigible for capitalisation is
determined as follows:

= Actual borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a
quaiifying asset less any investment income on the temporary invesiment of those
borrowings.

- Weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the municipality on funds
generally borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. The borrowing
costs capitalised do not exceed the total borrowing costs incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when all the following conditions have
heen met:

-> expenditures for the asset have been incurred;

- borrowing costs have been incurred; and

- activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its mtended use or sale are
undertaker.

When the carrying amount or the expected ultimate cost of the qualifying asset exceeds its
recoverable amount or recoverable service amount or net realisable value, the canying
amount is written down or written off in accordance with the accounting pelicy on Impairment
of Assets as per accounting policy number 1.21. In certain circumstances, the amount of the
write-down or write-off is written back in accordance with the same accounting policy.

Capitalisation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is
intervupted. Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete. All other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.26 Use of Estimates

The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity with Generaily Recognised
Accounting Practice requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the municipality’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the annual financial statements
are disclosed in the relevant sections of the annual financial statements. Although these

estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current events and actions they
may undertake in the future, actual results ulimately may differ from those estimates.

1.27 Offsetting

Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses have not been offset except when offsetting is
required or permitied by a Standard of GRAP.

1.28 Investments

Where the carrying amount of an investment is greater than the estimated recoverable
amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount and an impairment loss is
charged to the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.29 Grants in aid

The Polokwane Municipality transfers money fo individuals, institutions and organisations.
When making these transfers, The Municipality does not: Receive any goods or services
directly in return, as wouid be expected in a purchase or sale fransaction Expect fo be repaid
in future; or Expect a financial return, as would be expected from an investment

These transfers are recognised in the financial statements as expenses in the period that the
events giving rise to the transfer occurred.
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1.30 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets
Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is a oss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over
and above the systematic recognition of the loss of the asset's future economic benefits or
service potential through depreciation (amorfisatior).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial
position after deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
thereon,

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset,
excluding finance costs and income tax expense.

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systemnatic allocation of the depreciablé amount of an
asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s
length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset's fair value less
cosis to sell and its value in use.

Useful life is either:

-> the period of time over which an asset is expected o be used by the municipality; or
- the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset
by the municipality. )

Identification

When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service
amount, it is impaired. The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any
indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
the municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.

Value in use

Value in use of an asset is the present value of the asset's remaining service potential.
The present value of the remaining service potential of an asset is determined using the
following approach:

Depreciated replacement cost approach

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is
determined as the depreciated replacement cost of the asset. The replacement cost of an
asset is the cost to replace the asset's gross service potential. This costis depreciated to
reflect the asset in its used condition. An asset may be replaced either through reproduction
{replication) of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross service potential. The
depraciated replacement cost is measured as the reproduction or replacement costof the
assef, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such
cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset.

The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset is determined on an "optimised”
basis. The rationale is that the municipality would not replace or reproduce the asset with a
like asset if the asset fo be replaced or reproduced is an overdesigned or overcapacity
asset. Overdesigned assets contain features which are unnecessary for the goods or
services the asset provides. Overcapacity assets are assets that have a greater capacity
than is necessary to meet the demand for goods or services the asset provides. The
determination of the replacement cpst or reproduction cost of an asset on an optimised basis
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thus reflects the service potential requirad of the asset.
Restoration cost approach

Restoration cost is the cost of resloring the service potential of a cash-generating asset to its
pre-impaired level. The present value of the remaining service potential of the asset is
determined by subtracting the estimated restoration cost of the asset from the current cost of
replacing the remaining service potentiat of the asset before impairment. The latter cost

is determined as the depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is
lower.

Service units approach

The present value of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined by reducing
the current cost of the remaining service potential of the asset before impairment, to conform
to the reduced number of service units expected from the asset in its impaired state. The
current cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the asset before impaimment is
determined as the depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the asset before
impairment, whichever is lower.

Recognition and measurement

If the recoverable service amount of a not-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This
reduction is an impairment loss. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or
deficit. Any impairment loss of a re-valued non-cash-generating assetis treated as a
revaluation decrease. When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the
carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset to which it relates, the municipality
recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP.
After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the
non-cash-generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating
asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over
its remaining useful life.

Reversal of an impairment loss

The municipality assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss recognised in prior periods for & non-cash-generating asset may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the
recoverable service amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recegnised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment
loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset atiributable to a reversal of an impairment
loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately
in surplus or deficit. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating
asset is treated as a revaluation increase. After a reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised, the depreciation (amorfisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset's revised carrying
amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systemalic basis over its remaining useful life.

Re-designation

The re-designation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset
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or from a non-cash-generating asset o a cash-generating asset only occur when there is
clear evidence that such a re-designation is appropriate.

1.31 Presentation of Budget information in the Financial Statements

The Municipality shali present a comparison of the budget amounts for which it is held
publicly accountable and actual amounts either as a separate acditional financial statement
or as additional budget columns in the financial statements currently presented in
accordance with Standards of GRAP. The comparison of budget and actuai amounts shall
present separately for each level of legistative oversight:

- the approved and final budget amounits;

- the actual amounts on a comparable basis; and

- by way of note disclosure, an explanation of material differences between the budget
for which the entity is held publicly accountable and actual amounts, unless such
explanation is included in other public documents issued in conjunction with the
financial statements, and a cross reference to those documents is made in the notes.

Where an entity prepares its budget and annual financial statements on a comparable basis,
it includes the comparison as an additional column in the primary annual financial
statements. Where the budget and annual financial statements are not prepared on a
comparable basis, a separate statement is prepared called the ‘Statement of Comparison of
Budget and Actual Amounts’, This statement compares the budget amounts with the
amounts in the annual financial statements adjusted to be comparable to the budget.

A comparable basis means that the budget and annual financial statements:

> are prepared using the same basis of accounting i.e. either cash or accrual;
- include the same activities and entities; ’

- use the same classification system; and

- arg prepared for the same period.

1.32 Heritage Assets
Recognition of Assets

Heritage assets is recognised when it has a cultural, environmental, historical, natural,
scientific, technological or artistic significance and are held indefinitely for the benefit of
present and future generations.

Certain heritage assets are described as inalienable items thus assets which are retained
indefinitely and cannot be disposed of without consent as required by law or otherwise.

A heritage asset is further recognised as an asset only if:

-> it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the
asset will to the municipality; and
- the cost of fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Subsequent-Measurement

Heritage asset is measured at its cost value and should it be acquired through a non-
exchange fransaction will it be measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition and is
camied at its cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

If a heritage asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase is
credited directly to a revaluation surplus and is recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent
that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same heritage asset previously recognised in
surplus or deficit. If a heritage asset's carrying amount is decreased as a resulf of a
revaluation, the decréase is recognised in surplus or deficit and is debited directly to a
revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in
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respect of that heritage asset.

Although a heritage asset is not depreciated is the heritage asset assess at each reporting
date to disclose whether there is an indication that it may be impaired.

In terms of the standard, compensation from third parties for heritage assets that have been
impaired, lost or given up, should be included in surplus or deficit when the compensation
becomes receivable. .

The municipality will treat any difference at that date between the carrying amount of the
herifage asset and its fair value in the same way as a revaluation in accordance with this
Standard. Should any item of property, plant and equipment or an intangible asset carried at
a re-valued amount, or investment property carried at fair value is reclassified as a heritage
asset carried at a ré-valued amount, the entity applies the applicable Standard to that asset
up to the date of change. The entity treats any difference al (hat date between the carrying
amount of the asset and its fair valug in accordance with the applicable Standard relating to
that asset. Transfer of investment property carried at fair value, or inventories to heritage
assets at a re-valued amount, any difference between the fair value of the asset at that date
and its previous carrying amount should be recognised in surplus or deficit. '

ltem use Fill Live

Property and building — Indefinite
Other Assets - 5 to 50 years

De-recognition of Asset
The carrying amount of a heritage is de-recognised:
"> on disposal, or

- when no future economic bengfits or service potential are expected from its use or
disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition, of a heritage asset should be determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the calrying amount of the
heritage asset. Such difference is recognised in surplus or deficit when the hetitage assetis
derecognised.

2. New standards and interpretations
2.1 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The municipality has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have
been published and are mandatory for the municipality's accounting periods beginning on or
after 01 July 2012 or later periods:

GRAP 18: Segment Reporting - Issued March 2005

Segments are identified by the way in which information is reported to management, both for
purposes of assessing performance and making decisions about how future resources will
be allocated to the various activiies undertaken by the entity. The major classifications of
activities identified in budget documentation will usuatly reflect the segments for which an
entity reports information to management.

Segmeni information is either presented based on service or geographical segments.
Service segments relate to a distinguishable component of an entity that provides specific
outputs or achieves particular operating objectives that are in line with the entity’s overall
mission. Geographical segments refate to specific oufputs generated, or particular objectlves
achieved, by an entity within a particular region.
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This Standard has been approved by the Board but its effective date has not yet been
determined by the Minister of Finance. The effective date indicated is a provisional date and
could change depending on the decision of the Minister of Finance.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2011,

The municipality expacts to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2012 annual financial
statements. It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the municipality's
annual financial statements.

GRAP 20: Related Party — Issued June 2011
Related party relationships exist throughout the public sector, because:

(a) The Municipalities is subject to the overall direction of an executive government or
Council and ultimately, parliament, and operate together to achieve the policies of the
government

(b) The Municipality conduct activities necessary for the achievement of different parts of
their responsibilities and objectives through separate controlled entities, and through
entities over which they have significant influence

{c) Public entities enter into transactions with other government entities on a regutar
Basis, and

(d) Ministers, councillors or other elected or appointed members of the government and
other members of management can exert significant influence over the operations of

an entity. :

The mere existence of related party relationships means that one party can conirol, jointty
control or significantly influence the activities of another party. This provides the opportunity
for transactions to occur on a basis that may give one parly an advantage at the expense of
another. Therefore the disclosure of related party transactions, outstanding balances, and
the relationship underlying those transactions is necessary for accountability purposes.

Management could hold positions of responsibility within an entity and therefore members of
management will be responsible for the strategic direction and operational management of
an entity and are entrusted with significant authority. However, their responsibilities may
enable them to influence the benefits of office that fiow to them, or their related parties or
parties that they represent on the governing body.

Close members of the family of persons related to the entity may influence, or be influenced
by them in their transactions with the entity.

Disclosure of related party fransactions, outstanding balances, including commitments, and
relationships with related parties may affect users’ assessments of the financial position and
performance of the reporting entity and its ability o deliver agreed services, including
assessments of the risks and opportunities facing the entity. This disclosure also ensures
that the reporting entity is transparent about its dealings with related parties.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2013,
The municipality does not envisage the adoption of the standard until such time as i
becomes applicable to the municipality's operation.

At present the impact of the standard is not material.

GRAP 25: Employee benefits - Issued November 2009

The objective of GRAP25 is to prescribe the accounting and disclosure for employee
benefits.
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The Standard requires a municipatity fo recognise:

> a liability when an employee has provided service in exchange for employee benefits

to be paid in the future; and
-» an expense when an municipality consumes the economic benefits or service

potential arising from service provided by an employee in exchange for employee
benefits.

GRAP25 must be applied by an employer in accounting for all employee benefits, except
share based payment transactions.

- Defined contribution plans as post-employment benefit plans under which an
municipality pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no
legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods;

- Defined benefit plans as post-employment benefit plans ather than defined
contribution plans;

>3 Muli-employer plans as dsfined contribution plans (other than state plans and
composite social security programmes) or defined benefit plans (other than state
plans) that:

- pool the assets confributed by various entities that are not under common control;
and

- use those assets to provide benefits to employees of more than one entity, on the
basis that contribution and benefit levels are determined without regard fo the
identtity of the municipality that employs the employees concerned;

->0ther long-term employee benefits as employee benefits (other than post-
empioyment benefits and termination benefits) that is not due to be settled within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
sarvice;

- Post-employment benefits as employee benefits (other than termination benefits)
which are payable after the completion of employment;

- Post-employment benefit plans as formai or informal arrangements under which an
muricipality provides postemployment benefits for one or more employees;

- Shor-term employee benefits as employee benefits {other than termination benefits)
that are due 1o be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service;

= Slate plans as plans other than composite social security programmes established by
fegisiation which operate as if they are multi-empioyer plans for all entities in
economic categories laid down in legislation;

- Termination benefits as employee benefits payable as a result of sither:
an entity's decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal

retirement date; or
an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those
benefits; .

- Vested employee benefits as employee benefits that are not conditional on future

employment.

The standard states the recogniiion, measurement and disclosure requirements of:

- Short-term employee benefits;
= All shori-term employee benefits;

-> Short-term compensated absences;

- Bonus, incentive and performance related payments;
- Post-employment benefits: Defined coniribution plans;
- Other long-term employee benefits;

-> Termination benefits.
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The standard states Post-employment benefits: Distinction between defined
contribution plans and defined benefit plans:

- Multi-employer plans;

- Defined benefit plans where the participating entities are under commeon control;
-> State plans;

-» Composite social security programmes;

- Insured benefits.

The standard states, for Post-employment benefits: Defined benefit plans, the following
requirements:

- Recognition and measurement;

-> Presentation;

- Disclosure;

- Accounting for the constructive obligation;

- Statement of financial position;

- Asset recognition ceiling;

- Asset recognition ceiling: When a minimum funding requirement may give rise fo a
liability;

-» Statement of financial performance.

The standard prescribes recognition and measurement for:

- Present value of defined benefit obligations and current service cost:
= Actuarial valuation method; :
- Attributing benefits to periods of service;
= Actuarial assumptions;

- Actuarial assumptions: Discount rate;

-» Actuarial assumptions: Salaries, benefits and medical costs;
- Acluarial gains and losses;

- Past service cost.

. Plan assets:

- Fair value of plan assets;

- Reimbursements;

- Return on plan assets.

The standard also deals with Entity combinations and Curtailments and settlements.

This Standard has been approved by the Board but its effective date has not yet been
determined by the Minister of Finance. The effeciive date indicated is a provisional date and
could change depending on the decision of the Minister of Finance.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2011. The
municipality expects to adopt the standard for the first ime in the 2012 annual financial
statements.

It is unfikely that the standard will have a material impact on the municipality's annuai
financial statements. .

"GRAP 105: Transfer of Functions between Entities under Common Control —
Issued November 2010"
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"The compliance to the standard would have no effect on the present presentation of the
Annual Financial Statement, However should in the future it be necessary to transfer
functions between entities under common control will the accounting policy be amended to
cater for such transfer.”

"GRAP 106: Transfer of Function between Entities Not Under Common Control —
Issued November 2010"

"The compliance to the standard would have no effect on the present presentation of the
Annual Financiat Statemment. However should in the future it be necessary fo transfer

* functions between entities not under commen control will the accounting policy be amended
to cater for such transfer.”

GRAP 107: Mergers ~ Issued November 2010
"The compliance to the standard would have no effect an the present presentation of the
Annual Financial Statement. However should in the future there be a merger between

entities will the accounting policy be amended to cater for such merger transactions and
disclosure.”
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HOUSING DEVELOPMENT FUND

Unappropriated Surpius
Loans extinguished by Government in April 1898

The Housing Fund is represented by the following assets and liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment
Housing selling scheme loans
Bank and cash

RESERVES

Revaluation Reserve

BORROWINGS
Non-Current Borrowings

Local Registered Stock loans
Annuity leans

Current Portion of Borrowings
Local Registered Stock loans
Annuity loans

Refar to Appendix A for more detail on long term
liabilities.

The Fair value of all long term loans approximates
their book vaiue

Long term loan commitments: The Municipality had
entered into a loan agreementwith the Development
Bank of Southern Africa on 18 February 2011 to
borrow R320 million at a interest rate of 8.875%
over 10 years.

The Municipality has made a drawdown of R86.9
million (2011:R233.1 million} from this facility in the
financial year ending 3¢ June 2012

CONSUMER DEPOSITS

Water and electricity

No interest is paid on consumer deposits.

Guarantees held in lieu of electricity and water
deposits
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2012 2011
R R
11247 728 11 155 453
8267 757 8 175 482
2 979 971 2 979 971
507 721 507 721
2243 264 2397719
8 496 743 8 250 013
11247 728 41 155 453
770 838 771 770 838 771
516 595 781995
333 879 229 280 277 095
334 395 623 281 059 090
35 807 907 26 578 289
0 65 400
35 807 907 26 512 889
298 587 916 254 480 801
62 072 194 57 596 427
8 888 046 g 170 371
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2012 2011
R R
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES FROM
EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Trade Creditors 91 546 775 70842072
Amounts received in advance 28 555 906 15568 871
Gther 11 318 258 9 694 984
Guarantees 261795 261 795
Leave bonus (13th cheque) 7 701 607 7 384 390
Staff leave 43 831 646 40 099 206
Retention withheld on projects 35203 058 36 457 268
218 419 045 180 308 585
CURRENT UNSPENT CONDITIONAL GRANTS
FROM GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC DONATIONS
Local Gaverninent Restructuring Grant 953 927 953 927
Public Transport Infrastructure and Systems Grant 34 276 855 5250000
Municipal Infrastructure Grant 111 398 780 118 520 006
Limpopo Provincial Government 2349710 2949710
Water Services Refurbishment Grant 6 407 000 0]
Integrated National Electrification Programme Grant 0 7 992 204
Electricity Demand Side Management Grant 8 537 558 257 208
Housing Accreditation Grant 349 572 333 424
Local Government Transition Grant 649 874 649 874
Local Economic Development Grant 54714 54714
Neighbourhood Development Partnership Grant 0 2 605 292
Expanded Public Works Programme Jncentive Grant 2 464 617 g70 098
Sport & Recreation 371197 0
Local Organising Committee 0 25 000 000
National Lottery B 153 144 i}
Anglo Platinum o] ] 1 296 000
174 566 848 4166 832 457

See note 20 and 21 for reconciliation of unspent
grants. These amounts are invested until utilised.

45



POLOKWANE MUNKIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

The invesiment property register was reviewed for completeness. Al tha lease cortracls was
reviewsd and compared 10 Ihe GRAP 16 declsion tree on investment property. It was fouwnd
that some pleces of Jand and buildings was not onthe lrvesimeni properly register. These
assels where broughl an 1o the register wah the value as & Is inihe valuation rofl.
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B PROPERTY, PLANT 5 EQUIFMENT
Landand Infrastructure Gtherand Herltage: Floance Total
Eallaings tavahia nase
R R R R R R
Carnying values at 30 June 2010 2159451434 2 597 345 397 122 226 RZ5 3428177 45 648 795 4 896 217 157
Cont 2262465 216 2767 2440 154 6BE 653 8429 32 46 508 810 6201610 267
Accumulaled deoreclaion - cost 1103 013 782)| (159 919 004} (32458 826){ ( 505 BEBO1SY (305393115
Other mavementsAranslers 2244 816 9261 159 120 84} (316604} (109783 527) 10978 527
Acquisllions 6,136,173 96,392,615 70539,034 275,549 7,015,080 123548371
Capilal under conslruction 13,975,322 338,898,448 38,317 4,009 550 152 312 086
Deareciaflon - based on tost -61,946,525 79,342,634 -28,950,556/ 08978 4502534 {171 956 635)
Revaluallon/ Impalment 423,011,555 -861,269 423729 226
Prior vear adiusimenls -acovistiions 1457539 -18,380 295 22.945,269 [ 1012 6022513
Prior vear adiusimanis -denreclallon 4,376,570 [} ] 308 4 316 570
Camyng vahie of disposals -759,B68 { 769 868)
Gost/Aceurnulated depreciallon 417427 417 427
Landfll sile o a
Major spare parls & stend-by equipmert 1942213 183423818
Prier Year Adlustmenils o
Other movemenlsAransfers -227,014,338 194,634,304 42,380,040 o 0 [
D 3 2752226 -2.591,952 -160.245 1 { o
Carrylng values at 30 June 2041 2,320,664 20% 2,931,611,215 172,277,872 €,6579,103 6,167,336 §,497,402,828
Cosl 2482.076.283 179,148,215 228.014,130 8,388,517 1,594,362 6,910,021,635
Accumulated desreciation — casl -162,208 080 -247.437,000 6,736 226 -1 709475 -5427,025 -472.617 807
Acquisilions 15,086,087 106,144,643 15,087 927 136,330,656
Caoilal under consliuclion 37,736,300 172,037.109 209,773,408
Depreclation ~based on cost -62,046,163 109712325 -26,025,092 3,340 402 -3,834,245 -204.958,328
Revalualion/ Impaimenl -1.202,1 -1.202,194
Qlher mevementsAransfers 41 0 41
Carrvina velue of disposals a 0
Depraclatl i o384 248 -3,634. M8
Carying values at 30 June 2017 2,311 446,427 3,100,088,500 456,314,267 3,338,701 2,312,941 5,373,512,985
Cosl 2,535,700,670 3,457,329,928 241,909,931 B.388,577 11,524,362 6,254,923 466
Accumuiated dereciallon — cost -224,254,243 -357 249878 -B5.595,664 50488770 9261371 -681,410,460
All assets were revalued by using depreciated
replacemenl values, The offecive date of fhe
revahzalion was 1 July 2008.
Refer 4o Appendx 3 for more detall on properly, plant & equipment, includng these inthe course of construclion,
The municipality did engaged inlo projects where cerlaln roads whare resuefaced duing the 2011-12 financlal year.
Tha new surfaces layers was addecio Ihe reglster and the oldt sirface layer was dezomilloned.
During the Physical verification i was found ihat movable assals ihat relates to Macalaersy ang equipment,
Frniture and filings and compuler equipment was nol on the asset register. These assets was falivalued by using
the DRC (Depreciaedseplacement cosl} method. A receacillation off vehicles betwean (e assed register and
eMatus was done and it was found thal some vehicles was not on ibe assel reglslar. These vehcllas was valued
uskng the Trans Unlen 2ute dealers guides,
Duringthe physicat verification of af movable assels a condtion assetment of pach asset was done. This formed
e basis of the impakment fast. It was founc thal a number of assels condilon was eliher poor or very poor. The
recoverable service amount was defarmined by eslimating what the anily. could sell ihe asset for to anclhe: party In
an amy's lenglh ransaction,
H was found [nal Land assets deprecialed Incorrecity in live gravious financlal year. The deprecialion was corectad.
Assels: Al the Ir assels was reviewed for impaimment. There was & process In place where
Impaiment meelings was held with the app techriical Aflar and review il was
dacided nol to Impalr the infrastructure assels value. The usetul iife of the infrasiniclures wheze raviewed and
whete an assets condition was poar or very paor Ine remaining useful e was adjusted according lo the consitlon
factor. This inflated the deprecialion for the year
Moveable assels: The useful Iife of movable assels was Teviewsd as af 01 .July 2011. il was found thal soeme
maveable assets would hzve fully deprociatad within the current financlal year. The useful Iite of ihese assets
where extended wilh 2 years aflar review.
The Land register was recanciled 1othe valuallon rall. It was foundha some properties was nol iz the register and
# was added lo the regisier. i was 2iso found that some of the properties value on the ragisier did nol comrespond
wilh the value on The vatuation roll, The values on the asset register was revalued sotha i balances wilh the
valustion roll.
8.1 INTANGIBLE, ASSETS
Intangible
R
Canylng values at 30 June 2011 41,195,281
Cost 48,555,935
Accunulzted depreciallon — cost 7AT0.654
Other movementsAransfers
Acquisilions 1,669 406
Caphal under consiruclion 6,709,972
Depreciation — basad on coxl -$5.157 028
o
Carrying vajues at 0 June 2612 4 AI7,631
Cost 56,855,313
Accumutated depraciation — cost -22527.692
8.2 INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Carving values at 4 Julv 2010 125,519,500
Cosl : 126,510,500
Accumulaled desreclation - cosl ]
Olher movementsAransfers
Prior vear adiustmenls -acaulsiions 12 549,167
Deoreciation- S
GCarrving values at 3¢ June 2011 L......TIB,359,667]
Cosl 136 353,567
Accumutaled depreclation - cost 0
Garrving values at1 Julv 2091 j—— 138,359,667
Cost 138,353,667
Accumualed depraciglion — cost ]
Olher mavemantsAransfers
Depriciation-
Camrying vafuss at 30 June 2012 138,358,667
Cosl 138,352,667
Accumulated deprecialion — cast i}



POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 LUNE 2012
8.3 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
Game Other Assets Total
8.3.1 Reconciliation of Carrying Value

R R R

as at 1 July 2010 8,174,385 - 8,774,385

CostfValuation 8,774,385 . B,774,385
Ceorreciion of error (note 48) -
Change in accaunting policy (note 47) -
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses - - -

Acquisitions - - -
Decrease due to harvest/sales - -
Gains from changes in fair value 5,834,908 - 5,834,908

Carrying vaiue of disposals - - -

Cost/Valuation 1’ » N B
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Impairment loss/Reversal of impairment loss - - -
Transfers - - -

as at 30 June 2011 14,609,293 - 14,609,293

CostfValuation 14,609,293 - 14,609,293
Accurnulated depreciation and impairment losses

* Other movements consistof......
Game Other Assets Total
Reeonciliation of Carrying Value
R R R

as at 1 July 2011 14,609,293 - 14,608,293

Cost/Valuation 14,609,293 - 14,609,293
Cotrection of error {note 48) -
Change in accounting policy (note 47) -
Accumuiated depreciation and impairment losses - - -

Acquisitions - -
Decrease due to harvest/sales - - -
Gains from changes in fair value - -

Carrying value of disposals (7,304,847} - (7,304,647}

Cost/Valuation

Accumtlated depreciation and impairment losses (7.304,647) - {_7.304,647)

Impairment loss/Reversal of impairment loss - - -
Transfers - - -
Other movements™ - - -

as at 30 June 2012 7,304,647 - 7,304,647
Cost/Valuation r 14,609,293 - 14,609,293
Accumuiated depreciation and impaiment losses -7,304,647 - (7.304,647)

a7



POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

2012 2011
R R
INVESTMENTS
Long Term Investments
Standard Bank 58 999 800
Investment in municipal entity [THA}) 8217 389 8217 389
67 217 189 8217 389
Short Term Fixed Deposits
ABSA Bank 50 000 000 80576 137
First Naticnal Bank 40 000 000 20000 000
Ned bank 60 000 000 40279912
Standard Bank 73808 054 79137 173
223 805 054 219993 222
Tofal Investments 291 025 243 228 210611
Counci’s valuation of investments 291 025 243 228 210611
No investments have been wiitten off during the
The Standard Bank long term invesiment serves
as guarantee for Eskom bulk purchases
RECEIVABLES
Nen-Current Portion of Receivables
Housing selling scheme foans 2243264 2397718
Sport loans 662 628 932 016
Erven loans 7 419 480 21 312 350
lLoan to Subsidiary - Polokwane Housing
Association 5844323 5 126 598
16 169 704 29 768 684
Current Portion of Receivables
Current portion transferred to cumrent receivables
7502238 21371735
Heusing selling scheme loans 132 494 141 686
Spoit loans o] 88 200
Erven loans 7368744 21 141 849
8 667 466 8 396 949

Housing seliing scheme loans
These loans have different interest rates and
loans were given over a period of 30 years,

Sportloans

These loans were given to sporting bodies at an
interest rate of 10% repayable over 10 vears.
These loans are repayable in 2016,

Erven loans
These loans were granted 1o the community for
the purchase of stands. The loans attract different
interest rates.

L.oar to Subsidiary

An interest free lcan was given to the Polokwane
Housing Association. The loan is repayable in
2017.

AR
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POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

2012 201
R R
INVENTORY
Opening halance of inventories 53879838 52 620 647
Consumables stores - at cost 50 056 087 48 961 428
Other goods held for resale - at cost 3 564 847 3246 426
Water 258 904 421 765
Additions 161 489 844 151 414733
Consumables stores 34 696 568 46284 461
Other goods held for resale 10768 718 3186 421
Water 116 024 560 104 811 851
Issued {Expensed) (155214 212) {144 B854 852)
Consumables stores (37 907 184) (39 879 910)
Ciher goods held for resale {1264 912)
Water (116 042 116} {104 974 742)
write-down/ {reversal of write-down) to Net
replacement Value and stelen 0 (5 309 890)
Consumables stores | o] | {5 309 890}
Closing balances of inventories 80 155 470 53 879 838
Consumable stores - at cost 46 845 471 50 066 087
Unsold properties held for resale 13068 651 3564 847
Water - at cost 241 348 258 504
Only unsold properties listed under inventory
which were sold during the year, were expensed.
Consumable stores fair value disclosed is based
on the weighted average calculation method
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES FROM
EXCHANGE TRANSCATICNS
Consumer Deblors 408 225 260 333472121
Sale of water and electricity 15 to 30June 28 246 588 20058 221
Less Provision for bad debis (168 346 946) (145 856 743)
Less contra deblors suspense account {2 806 684)
Plus cutstanding RD cheques 134 733
263 452 951 207 673 599
Ageing of consumer debtors
Current (0-30 days} 119 500 842 101 884 601
31-60 days 26 970 400 29402 051
61-80 days 16620 254 13 186 022
91-120 days 12282 688 12694 151
120+ days 254090730 193 376 760
429 464 964 350 543 585
Consumer debtors per categary
Government 46 425 701 26 367 371
Business 137343215 46 660 282
Individuals 234874936 268 128 944
Cther 10822112 G 386 9688
429 465 964 350 543 585
The analysis and ageing of consumer debtors per
service coufd not be provided as the billing
system utilised by the municipality was not set up
to generate such reperts. DuAng the next
reporting period will the information be made
available
Recenciliation of bad debt provision
Balance at beginning of year 145 856 743 106 736 120
Contributions to provision 38 191 993 39 120 623
Bad debts recovered/(written off) against provision (15 701 790)
Over provision previous year
Balance at year end 468 346 946 145 856 743
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POLOKWANE MUNICIPAEITY
NOTES TO THE FENANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

OTHER RECEIVABLES
Cther debtors

Deposits

VAT

Vat refundable

Vat is payable on cash basis.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The municipality has the following bank accounts:

Current account {primary bank account}
Standard Bank; Polokwane
Account number. 030172349

Bank staternent balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year

Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year

2010 Account
Standard Bank: Polokwane
Agcount number. 320535250

Bank staternent balance at beginning of vear
Bank statement balance at end of year

Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year

Housing Account
Standard Banic Polokwane
Agcount number. 330535269

Bani statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year

Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year

Other
Petty cash

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Propery, plant and equipment
Investment property
Other assets

The municipality did not have Non-current assets
held for sdle in the current and prior financial
years.
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2012 2011
R R

13552 382 4 688 389
508 300 500 900

14 061 682 5 189 289
65908 014 15 296 267
10122 809 18314 8114
9072632 10 122 §39
4853581 (96 027 207}
10 866 064 4 863 581
0 { 70

0 [

o { 70

[ [

333 424 318 349
349 572 333 424
333 424 318 349
349 572 333424
14134 545
43760 43780
11273 530 5241310

2012 2011
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POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEVIENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

2012 2011
R R
PROPERTY RATES
Residential 88 444 976 82 154 432
Government 24993 029 22876 895
Commercial 80 8476 648 85179 961
Cther 25 108 048 21718 224
229 422 699 211929 612
VALUATIONS ROOO's RO0D’s
Residential 20840 135 20461 205
Goverament 3481208 3328573
Commerciat 12384 250 12325 206
Municipal 2045912 1878292
Other 6332 941 6231994
A5 094 447 44 225 670
Valuations on land are performed every four years
and the last generai valuation come into effect on
1 July 2010. The basic rate for 201112 was
021501¢ in the Rand on land. Different rebates
are granted to owners dependent on the land
value of the property. An additional rebate of 20%
was granted to pensioners.
SERVICE CHARGES
Sale of electricity 556 892 476 434 520160
Sale of water 137 850 018 105 647 778
Refuse removal 47 227 905 44 289 851
Sewerage and sanitation charges 39311034 36860 770
781281433 620 213 560
RENTAL OF FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT
Renial of facilities 5509 981 4 336 869
Rental of equipment G 0
Total rentals 5 509 961 4 336 869
GOVERNMENT SUBSIDIES & GRANTS
Operating Grants 367 484 803 360 475 959
Equitable share 350 705 000 307 859 481
Municipa} systems improvement grant 750 000 750 000
Water services operating grant 13 111 004 14 667 000|
Finance management grant 1 260 000 832 128
Public transport infrasructure and systems grant
0 35000 000
Public partners 1 567 350
Spoit & Recreation 1 628 803 0
Capital Grants 243 510 998 129 515 626
Municipal infrastructural grant 160 800 547 62 236 67
Finance management grant 0 387 872
Integrated nationai electrification programme
grant 16 111 934 14 688 067
Electricity demand side management grant 951 973 14 510 469
Public transport infrastructure grant 14792 776 11528180
Expanded public works programme incentive
grant 1248 481 2 478 852,
Neighbourhood development 18 605 292 5 553 258
Public parners 0 1961 094
Water services refurbishment grant - 16 191 147
Total Government Grants & Subsidies 580 595 8301 48% 981 585
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POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

GOVERNMENT SUBSIDIES & GRANTS (CONTINUED)

Equitable Share

Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipis

Conditions met - transferred to revenue

This grant is an unconditionally grant and is
partially ulilized for the provision of indigent
support through free basic services. Registerad
indigents receive a maximum monthly subsidy of
R160.00 (2011: R141.00) which is funded from
this nrant

Restructuring Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Conditions met — transferred to revenue
Unspent amount transferred to liabilities

(see note 7)

The grant was used for various restructuring
initiatives.

Finance Managément Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Conditions met —transferred to revenue

Unspent amount transferred to liabilities

{see note 7)

This grant was used to promote and support
reforms to municipal financial management and
the implementation of the MFMA, 2003. The
conditions of the grant were met. No funds have
been withheld.

Water Services Operating Subsidy Grant

Cument year receipts
Cenditichs met — fransferred o revenue
1] t amount t ferred to liabilities

{see note 7}

The grant was utilised to subsidize sdlaries of
staff and repair and maintenance of water
schemes transferred by DWAF.

Public Transport Infrastructure and Systems
Balance unspent at beginning of vear

Cument year receipts

Conditions met — transferred to revenue

Paid back to National Treasury

Unspent amount transferred to liabilities

(see note 7)

The grant was used for public transpert and non
motorised transport infrasiructure.

Municipal Systems. improvement Grant
Balance unspent at beginning of year

Cumrent year receipts

Conditions met - transferred to revenue
Unspent amount fransferred to liabilities

(see note 7)

The purpose of the grant is for institutional
systems. The grant was utilised.

GOVERNMENT SUBSIDIES & GRANTS {CONTINUED)

Department of Sport & Recreation

Balance unspent at beginning of vear

Curent year receipls

Conditions met - transferred to revenue
Unspent amount transferred to fiabilities

{see nots 7)

This grant was ulilised to construct a new 2010
stadium for the 2010 FIFA soccer World Cup.
The conditions of the grant were met and no
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2012 2011
R R
0 0
350,705,000 307,859,481
(350 705 000) (307 859 484)

0 0

953 927 953 927

0 0

953 927 953 927

¢ 0

1 250 000 1 000 D00
{1 250 000) {4 000 000y

[} 0

13111 000 14 667 000
(13 111 .000) {14 667 000}
5250 000 11528 189
55347 Q00 40 250 000
(14792 776) (46 528 189
{11 527 369) 0
34276 855 5 250 000

] 0

790 000 750 000
{790 000) { 750 000)

[ [

0
2 000 000

{1 628 803} .

371197 [}
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POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 301 UNE 2052

Municipal Infrastructure Gramnt

Balance unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Conditions met - transferred to revenue

Paid hack to National Treasury

Unspent amount transferred 1o liabilities

{see note 7)

This grant was used to construct municipal
infrastructure to provide basic services for the
benefit of poor households. The conditions cfthe
grantwere met and no funds have been withheld.

Limpopo Provincial Government

Balance unspent at beginning of year

Curment year receipts

Conditions met - transferred to revenue
Unspent amount fransférred to liabilities

(see note 7}

Water Services Refurbishment Grant
Balance unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Conditions met — transferred to revenue
Unspent ameunt transferred fo fiabilities

(see note 7)

The grani was utllised to subsidise water

schemes transferred by DWAF.

Limpopo Local Government & Housing
Balance unspent at baginning of year

Current year receipts

Conditions met — transferred io revenue
Unspent amount fransferred to habilities

(see note 7)

The grant was used fo fund the housing

accreditation process

Local Government Transition Grant
Balance unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Condilions met - tranisferred to revenusg
Unspent amount fransferred to liabilities

(see note 7)

The grant was used to fund the local govemment

transitional phase

Local Economic Development Grant
Balance unspent at begining of year

Curmrent year receipts

GCeonditions met - transferred to revenue
Unspent amount transferred to liabilities

{see note 7}

The grant was used to fund local economic

development processes .

Imegrated National Electrification Programme

Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year

Current ysar receipts

GConditions met — transferred to revenue

Paid back to National Treasury

Unspent amount transferred to liabilities

{see note 7)

The grant was used to fund projects 1o address
electrification backiogs in rural areas .
Electricity Demand Side Management Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year

Cumrent year receipts

Conditions met — transferred to revenue

Paid back to National Treasury

Unspent amount transferred to labilities

{see note 7)

The grant was used to fund projects in order to
mitigate the risk of load shedding and supply

2012 2011
R R
118 520 005 28 927 683
182 607 000 151 828 000
{160 800 542) (62 236 678)
(28 $27 683} 0
411398 780 118 520 005
2949710 2949710
0 v
0 ¢
2949 710 2949710
- 16181 147
6 407 000 0
. (16 191 147)
6 407 000 -
333 424 318349
16148 15075
0 0
348 572 333 424
649 874 649 874
0 0
0 0
549 374 649 874
54714 54714
0 0
0 0
54714 54714
7992204 14 880 271
22 800 000 8 000 000
16 111 934) {14 688 067)
{14 680 270} 0
N 7992 204
257 208 2767 678
12 000 000 12000 000
861 973) (14 510 470)
(2767 877) 0
B 537 558 257 208
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POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2032

Expanded Public Works Programme Incentive
Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Conditions met ~ transferred to revenue

Unspent amount fransferred to liabilities

(see note 7)

The grant was used to fund projects in order to

maximise job creaticn and skills development .

Neighbourhood Development Partnership
Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year

Cumrent year receipts

Conditions met - transferred to revenue

Unspent amount fransferred to Habilities

(see ncte 7)

The grant was used to fund projects in order to

provide communily infrastructure to improve
quality of life of residents in townships .

PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS, DONATED &
CONTRIBUTED PROPERTY, PLANT &
EQUIPMENT

Loc, Anglo Platinum& National Lottery
Balance unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Conditions met — transferred to revenue

Unspent amount transferred to labilities

(see note 7)

The grant was utiiised to install water
infrastructure.

Total Unspent grants, Subsidies & Public Contributions
See note 7 for reconciliation

INVESTMENT REVENUE
EXTERNAL INVESTMENTS

Current account
External investments
Investmentin PHA

OTHER REVENUE

Bulilding plan fees

Consumer Cennection fees
Sale of erven

Surcharge excess

Royalties Silicon

Services contributions
Reconnection and notice fees
Refund Seta lavy

Laboratory tests

Retention forfeited

insurance claims

Admission fees

Gain on change in accounting basis for VAT
Sundry incame

EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS

Employee related cost - Salaries and wages
Employee related cost - Sociat contributions
Mator car allowannes

Housing benefits and other allowances
Qvertime benefits

Leave bonus provision

Leave resetve provision

Long temn service awards

There were no advances paid tc employees.
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2012 2011
R R
970 098 0
2 743 000 3448950
{1248 481) (2 478 852)
2 464 617 $70 098
2 805 292 0
17 000 000 8 158 550
(19 605 292) (5 553 258)
- 2 605 292
26 296 000 -
16 506 181 29 824 444
(36 648 037) (2528 444)
& 153 144 26 296 000
174 566 948 166 832 456
7902589 3023736
15933 780 5078795
717 724 629 582
24 554 093 8 7327113
3 084 698 3190319
5300 114
1264912 21 430 899
27653014 20605 785
316101 2192792
0 2217622
0 5471098
2091788 1196154
0 3508172
6 540 551 ]
3 908 950 o}
748 108 i}
41 283 400 0
8 967 903 & 456 796
95 839 625 72569 750
237 100 388 221617548
58 648 612 56 140 565
26 015 547 22 269 567
9 356 697 8 458 689
50 881 279 43026 18
317 217 0
13718 862 5372469
2994 417 5 286 963
399 033 020 362 171318
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NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

Municipal Manager

Annual remuneration
Allowances

Geouncil Contributions

Chief Financial Officer
Annual remuneration
Allowances

Council Contributions

Director Planning & Economic Development

Annual remuneration
Allowances
Council Contributions

Director Engineering Services
Annual remuneration
Allowances

Coungil Contributions

EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS {CONT)

Director Community Development
Annual remuneration

Allowances

Councit Contributions

Director Corporate & Shared Services
Annhual remuneration

Allowances

Coungil Contributions

Director Strategic Planning, Monitoring &
Evaluation

Annual remuneration

Allowances

Council Contributions

No pefforinance benuses were paid out n terms

of Section 57 of the Municipal Systems Act

REMUNERATION OF COUNCILLORS

Executive Mayer

Speaker

Chief Whip

Mayoral Committes members
Councillors

In-kind Benefits

The Executive Mayor, Speaker and certain
Mayoral Committee Mambers are full time. Each
is nravicded with an nffir and serretarial sunnort
The Executive Mayor has use of a Council owned
vehicle.

FINANCE COST
Local Registered Stock loans

Finance leases
Annuity loans

POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY

2012 2011
R R

856 847 486 734
206 475 139188
185 324 122 074
1252746 757 996
812 400 BO7 095
72000 72000
197 933 181 809
1082333 1060 904
503 989 402 265
161383 84 000
129 114 71261
794 436 547 526
547 437 200 045
168 D00 63 280
137 997 58 561
853 434 321 886
539 265 508 375
216 000 216 000
160 192 148 569
915 477 872 944
768 677 272840
144 000 54240
15887 644
914 234 327 524
638 229 576 428
197 861 168 Q0D
168 343 149 614
1004522 894 042
775 588 745 004
613578 599 569
580 881 485 433
4 299 698 3816 886
14344 978 14 131 697
20614 731 19778 839
3877 BB 198
452419 759 800
28970 407 12224742
29 426 803 13 072 740

55



27

28

28

30

POLCKWAME MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATENMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

2012 2011
R R
BULK PURCHASES
Electricity A2 771 978 313580343
Water 116 024 560 104 811 851
518 796 538 418 402 194
GRANT AND SUBSIDIES PAID
Anirnal care : SPCA 240 000 240 200
Grant - PHA 5 881 695 1]
6 121 695 240 000
GENERAL EXPENSES
Free basic services 18741 578 16139113
Printing and stationery 4314 991 4 049 696
Rental equipment 8 256 307 5908 477
Stores and material 2129874 2844528
Meter reading 6120087 4200976
Research and development 4 899 027 1679953
Training 2556127 2491 358
Postage and telegram 2010830 1 966 669
Legal expenses £ 213959 2 159 657
Subsistence and travelling 5650 283 4088123
Security services 21094 820 17 780 759
Telephone costs 49132 447 5087 758
Garden services 7118182 4955221
Awareness campaigns 95829 67 685
Insurance 8451 211 7345025
Levy Seta trining 3478526 2966 776
Sireet cleaning 8542191 77858615
Special Events 9923506 0
Provision for rehabilitation of landfill sites 304 668 276 871
Fuel and oil 7 921 679 5896 419
Bank charges 2746322 3213687
Stock losses 248212 1000494
Loss on disposal of assets c 131 621
Festivals 783 131 G
2010 Stadiumn Operating expenses 41 892 866 53 458 437
Subscription fees 3478235 2687032
Medical aid contributions continued members 24573 363 22631323
Valuation roll 424 173 1988333
Waste disposal 16570618 6853970
Other 57 864 085 50 G46 822
281 118 928 239 712 809
CORRECTION OF ERROR
During the year ended 30 June 2012 and previcus years, irade and other receivables, VAT and
Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property and Biclogical Assets were incomrectly recognised.
The comparative amount has been restated as follows:
HNon Current Assets
Adjustmént on Property, Plant & Equipment 433,350,638
Adjustment or Investment Property 12,849,167
Adjustment on Biological Assets 4,255 988
450,466,773
Net efffect on statement on Accumulated surplus opening balance 27,444,218
Total Net efffect on Revaluation Reserve 423,011,556
Current Assets
Adjustment onTrade and other resivables from exchange transactions 14,171,460
Adiustment on other receivables from exchange fransactions 1,572,579
Adjustment on VAT Receiveable 3,596,536
19,440,575
Net efffect on staternent on Accumulated surplus opening balance 19,440,575
Total Net effect on Statement of Financial Position 46 884 793
Total Net efffect on staterment on Accumulated surplus opening balance 46 884 793
Total Net efffect on Revaluation Reserve 423 011 555
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CASH GENERATED FROM{UTILISED N}
OPERATIONS

Net surplus for the year

Adjustment for:

Current year adjustment

Correction of prior year emor
Depreciation charges

Asset impaiment

Gonfribution to Reserve

tnterest received

Interest paid

Operating surplus before working capital
changes

{Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase}dscrease in debtors
(Increase)decreass in other debtors
Increasef{decrease) in conditional grants
Increasef{decrease) in creditors.
Increase/{decrease) in provisions
(Increase)/decrease in VAT

Cash generated by operations

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF
SECTION 125 OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE
MANAGEMENT ACT, 2003

Contribution to SALGA

Council membership fees payable
Amount paid current year

Balance unpaid {included in creditors)

Audit Fees

Current year audit fee

Amount paid current year

Balance unpaid {incliuded in credifors)

VAT

VAT was payable on the invoice basis for 11
months of the year. Since June 2012 VAT was
payable on cash basis. VAT input receivables
and VAT cutput payable are shown in note 14. All
VAT retums have been submitted by the due date
throughout the year.

Pay as You Earn {PAYE)
Current payroli deductions
Amount paid current year

Balance unpaid

Unemployment insurance Fund {UIF)
Current payrell deductions

Amount paid current year

Balance unpaid

Medical Aid

Current payroll deductions
Amaunt paid current year
Balance unpaid

Pension Fund

Cument payrell deductions
Amount paid eurrent year
Balance unpaid

POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDELD 30 JUNE 2012

2012 2011
R R
175 030 284 80 683 783
5174083 0
0 0
231 254 343 176 460 819
1202 194 0
0 0
(42 232 584) 3732 113)
29 426 803 13072 740
399 855 137 261 485 229
(6275 632) {1250 191)
(55 779 352) (39 852 058)
(8872293 2417219
7734 491 87810916
38110 462 {48 645 480)
18941325 16 636 338
(56511 747) 31150 799
343 102 292 309 752 763
2073614 1877 425
(2073 614) {1 877 425)
2302725 3101 941
(2302 725) (3 101 941)
52594 193 47 436 008
(52 594 193) (47 456 008)
4011698 3883679
(4011 698) (3 863 679)
24 368 502 24 46T 420
(24 368 502} (24 467 420)
58021 625 56 534 057
(59 021 625) (56 534 057}
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POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 J UNE 2012

2012 2011
R R
328 Councillor's arrear consutner accotnts
The following Councillors had amear aceounts Total Qutstanding less than Outstanding more
outstanding for more than 80 days as at: - 90 days than 90 days
R R R
as at 30 June 2012
Nkadimeng SE 6131 166 5 965
Methiba LM 18 040 1221 16 819
Raletjena 71838 46 471 25 367
Moakgekeng NJ 3127 444 2 683
Tetal Councillor Arrear Consumer Accounts 99 135 48 301 50 333
Curing the year the following Councillors had
afrear accounts autstanding for more than 90
days.
Highest
Amount
Outstanding Ageing Days
as at 30 -June 2012 R
Raletjena 71838 60
Mothiba LM 18040 120+
Nkadimeng SE 6131 120+
Mokgokong NJ 3127 120+
32 COMMITMENTS
321 [a) Commitments in respect of capital expenditure:
Approved and contracted for . 284 218 000 362 302 000
The expenditure will be financed from: ]
- Capital Replacement Reserve 156 677 810 166 185733
- Government and other Grants 127 540190 136 616 267
284 213 000 302 802 000
33.1{b) Operating leases
The Municipality did not have operating leases in
the cument or previous year
33.2 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 24 630 520 2 038800
24 630 520 2 039 900

See Annexure H for fuli detail on Contingent Liabilities

The above legal maiters are ongeing and have
not yet been finalized.
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POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

UNAUTHORISED, IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS
AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
DISALLOWED

Unauthorized expenditure
Reconciliation of unauthorized expenditure

Opening balance

Unauthorized expenditure current year
Approved by Council or condoned

Transfer to receivables for recovery
Unautherized expenditure awaiting authorization

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Recondiliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure

QOpening balance -
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure current year:
tnierest paid to Lepelle Northern Water
Commitment fee paid to DBSA
Condoned or written off by Council
To be recovered -~ contingent asset
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting condonement

[nterest to the amount of R733 560.90 was paid
To Lepelle Northem Water for late payment of
account {Disputed account)

Commitment fee to the amount of R357 978.19
was paid to DBSA for not taken up loan in time.,

Irregular expenditure
Reconciliation of iregular éxpénditure

Opening balance

Non compliance with SCM policyftender and
quetiation procedures

Non compliance with SCM policy/awards to
persons employed by the state

Non compliance with SCM policy/awards to
persons employed by the Municipality

Prior year irregular expendiiure identified in the
current year

Non compliance with SCM policy:current year

Overtime paid in contravention of the Basic
Conditions of Employment

Condoned or written off by Council

Transfer to receivables for recovery — not condoned
Irregular expenditure awaiting condonement

PROVISIONS

Provision for rehabilitation of landfill sites
Carrying amount at beginning of year
Additions during the year

Reaductions during the year

Carrying amount at end of year

2012 2011
272,067,938 182,218,767
140,440,390 80,849,171

(376,469,686) -

36,038,642 572,067,938
909,100 909,100
652,192
733,561
357.979

(2,000,640) .
692,192 909,100

67,786,306 325,184

10,002,313
2,996,025
104,347
53,458,437
137,019,697
17,912,965
(18,135,041) -
204,583,926 47,786,306
3,046,683 2,766,712
304,668 276,971
0 0
3,354,351 3,046,683

The Weltevreden Landfill Site is a permiited facility in terms of Section 20 of the
Environmental Canservation Act (Act 73 of 1988} and is located on portion 4 of the farm
Weltevreden 746 LS - District Polokwane. The expected fife span of the site is a further

12 years
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POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

35.2 Post-Employment Health Care Benefits

Fair value of plan assets - -
Accrued liability 154,437,733 138,685,784
Unfunded Accrued Liability 154,437,733 138,685,784
Unrecognised actuarial gains/(losses) - -
Unrecognised past service cost - -

Miscellaneous item - -
Net Liability in Batance Sheet 154,437,733 138,685,784

Reconcifing and projecting the unfunded accrued fiabifity

Unfunded Accrued Liability

Opening balance 138,685,785 124,945,775
Current-service cost 7,441,274 6,813,415
Interest cost 12,702,854 11,372,251

Expected return on plan assets " -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss - -
Past-service cost - -
Effect of curtailment/settlement - -

Actual employer benefit payments (4,392,180) (4,445,656)
Employer prefunding contributions - -
Closing Balance 154,437,733 138,685,785
Net liability fo reflect in the balance sheet

Opening balance 138,685,785 124,945,775
Current-service cost 7,441,274 6,813,415
Interest 12,703,854 11,372,251

Expected return on plan assets - -
Transitional liability Tecognised - -
Actuarial (Gain)/loss recognised in P&L - -
Past-service cost recognised - -
Effect of curtailment/setilement -
Net Periodic Cost Recognised in P&L 158,830,913 143,131,441
Actual employer benefits payments (4,392,180) {4,445 6586)
Transitional liability recognised - -

Employer prefunding contributions - -

Transitional liability recognised P&L - -

Actuarial (Gain)/loss recognised outside P&L

Closing Balance . 154,438,733 138,685,785

The following assumptions has been used for current and prior year

Discount rate 9.14% 9.14%
Health care cost inflation rate 9.65% 9.65%

35.3 Long Service Awards

Fair value of pian assets - -
Accrued liability 13,154,854 10,891,471

Unfunded Accrued Liability 13,154,854 10,891,471
Unrecognised actuarial gains/(fosses) - -
Unrecognised past service cost - -
Miscellaneous tem - -

Net Liability in Balance Sheet 13,154,854 10,891,471

Reconciling and projecting the unfunded accrued liability
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POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATENENTS ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

Unfunded Accrued Liability

Opening balance 10,881,471 8,873,872
Current-service cost 1,980,190 1,822,778
Interest cost £648,710 604,072

Expected return on plan assets - -
Actuarial (GainyLoss - -
Past-service cost - -
Effect of curtailment/settlement - -

Actual employer benefit payments (365,517} (409,251)
Employer prefunding contributions - -
Closing Balance 13,154,854 10,891,471

Net liability to reflect in the balance sheef

Cpening balance 10,891,471 8,873,872
Current-service cost 1,980,190 1,822,778
Interest 648,710 604,072

Expected returrs on plan assets - -
Transitional liability recognised - -
Actuarial {Gain)/loss recognised in P&L - -
Past-service cost recognised - "
Effect of curtailment/settiement - -
Net Periodic Cost Recognised in P&L 13,520,371 11,300,722
Actual employer benefits payments (365,517) (409,251}
Transitional liability recognised - -
Emptoyer prefunding contributions - -
Transitional liability recognised outside P&L - -
Actuarial (Gain)/loss recognised outside P&L - -

Closing Balance 13,154,854 10,891,471

Empioyees qualify for the following long service awards:

- After 10 years of continuous service an arount of R603.00 (adjustéd annually) per each year of service.
- Aftér 20 years of contiriuolis sefvice a watch to the value of RS 455 (adjusted annuafly)

-Additional 10,20 and 30 leave days for 10,15 and each 5 years after 15 years of service respectively

35.4 Ex-gratia benefits

Fair value of plan assets - -
Accrued lisbility 6,807,811 6,186,486
Unfunded Accrued Liability 6,807,811 6,186,486
Unrecogrised actuarial gains/{losses) - -
Linrecognised past service cost - -
Miscellaneous item - -

Net Liability in Balance Sheet 6,807,811 6,186,486

Reconciling and projecting the unfunded accrued liability

Unfunded Accrued Liability

Opening balance 6,186,486 5,584,727
Current-service cost 467,382 428,348
Interest cost 478,085 512,861

Expected return on plan assets - -
Actuarial {Gain)/Loss - -
Past-service cost - -
Effect of curtaiiment/settlement - -

Actual employer benefit payments (324,112) (339,450}
Employer prefunding contributions - -
Closing Balance 6,807,811 6,186,486

Net liability fo reflect in the balance sheet
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POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ENDED 30 JUNE 2032

Opening balance 6,186,486
Current-service cost 467,382
Interest 478,085
Expected return on plan assets -
Transitional liability recognised -
Actuarial (Gain)/loss recognised in P&L -
Past-service cost recognised -
Effect of curtailment/settiement B

5,584,727
428,348
512,861

Net Periodic Cost Recognised in P&L 7,131,923
Expected employer benefits payments {324,112}
Transitional liability recognised -
Employer prefunding confributions -
Transitional liability recognised outside P&L -
Actuarial (Gain)loss recognised outside P&L -

6,525,936
{339,450)

Closing Balance 6,807,811

6,186,486

Total Provisions 177,751,749

158,810,424

RISK MANAGEMENT

Maximum credit risk exposure

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits,
cash equivalenis and frade debters. The
municipality only deposits cash with major
barks with high quality credit standing and
limits exposure to any one counter-party.

customer base. Management evaluates credit
risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis.
If customers are independently rated, these
ratings are used.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year
end were as follows:

Irvestment in Banks 223,808,054
Trade and other receivables 263,452,951

219,993,222
193,602,139

487,261,005

413,495,361

These balances represent the maximum
exposure to credit risk.

Liguidity risk

The municipality’s risk to liquidity is a resulf of
the funds available to cover future
commitments. The municipality manages
liquidity risk through an ongoing review of
future commitments and credit facilities.

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate
utilised borrowing facilities are monitored.

The table below analyses the municipality’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the
Statement of Financial Position {o the

contraciual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

Borrowings 298,587,916
Trade and other payables 218,419,045

254,480,801
180,308,585

517,006,961

434,789,386
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POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCEAL STATEMENTS ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

RATIFICATION OF DEVIATIONS FROM
BREACHES [N PROCUREMENT
PROCESSES

Prescribed procurement processes werg not

followed but was approved by the Municipal

Manager in ferms of delegated powers and in

accordance with Supply Chain Management

Regulaticns and Policy. Valid reasons for

deviations were recorded in all instances. 10,497,195 13,868,634

FINANCE LEASE COMMITMENTS

The municipality future lease commitments on printing equipment and their present values
are as follows:

Minimum
lease
payments Finance costs Present value
2012
Current
Due within one year 2,690,373 93,369 2,697,004
Due between one and five years - - -
2,690,373 93,369 2,597,004
2011
Due within one year 4,421,714 452 419 3,969,296
Due between one and five years 2,690,373 93,369 2,597,004
7,112,087 545,788 6,566,299

The implicit interest rate embedded on a lease is 9.5%. The lease expires in February 2013 {ltec Meso}
and the other cne is Konica Minoita which expire in 28 February 2012

RELATED PARTIES

Relationships
Members of key management

No other payments are
paid outside contractual
employment payments
from employment. Refer
to note 22 for
remunearation.

Other refated party relationships Polokwane Housing Assosiation. Refer fo nofe 10

Related party transactions
Compensation o councillors and other key
management

Payments to councitlors
are for allowances as
gazetted. No other
payments are made 1o
councillors.Refer to note
23 for remuneration of
councillors.

Post employment benefit plan for employsas of
municipality and/or other related parties Refer fo note 35,2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

Related party balances

Loan accounts - Qwed by related parties
Thabatshweu Housing Association 14,061,713

Debtors accounts for rates - Owed by
related parties
Thabatshweu Housing Association 3,206,471

DISTRIBUTION LOSSES

The Municipality has incurred the following distribution losses as result of supply of
electricity and water

11,251,748

2,666,073

5331 204 {21.71%)
91 669 634 (12.34%)

Water distribution losses In KL 7982 232 (21.21%)

Electricity distribution losses kWh 73 822 461 (9.79%}

Monetary value

Water distribution losses R 33,844,650

Electricity distribution losses R 51,901,834
R 85,746,484

COMPARISON WITH THE BUDGET

The comparisen of the Municipality's actual
financial performance with that budgeted is set
out in Annexure G

42 CHANGE iN ACCOUNTING POLICY

There were no change in account policy that
required changes to the prior year reporting
amounts.

43 GAIN/(LOSS) ON SALE OF ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

investment property

Biological assets

Other financial assets

Total Gain / {Loss) on Sale of Assets -

There were no disposals of assets during the current
and previous financial years

44 IMPAIRMENT LOSS

Property, plant and equipment
During the physical verification of all movable 1,202,193.92
assets, a condition assessment of each asset
was done. It was eslablished that a total of
957 assets were in worse cendition than
expected. The recoverable service amount
was determined by estimating what the

entity could sell the asset for to a third parfy
in an arms’ length transaction,

Total Impairment loss 1,202,193.92
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

45 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Defined contribution and benefit plan

The Council provides retirement benefits to
empioyees by contributing to pension and
provident Funds Membership of either pension
or provident fund is compulsory for all
permanent employees.

The municipality and its employees conféribute
to 5 different Pension Funds, of which 3 (The
Municipal Employees Pension Fund, Municipal
Gratuity Furid and Samwu National Provident
Fund ) cater for the majority of the staff. The
Joint Municipal Pension Fund, Municipal
Employees Pension Fund, Municipal Gratuity
Fund ,Samwu National Provident Fund and
National Fund for Municipal Workers are
defined benefit funds.

Al the time of submission of this annual
financial statement were the acluarial valuation
reports of the various pension funds not
available.

The employees of the Council as well as the
Council as employer, contribute to
municipal pension, retirement and various

provident
funds as listed below:

2012 2011
The Joint Municipal Pension Fund 2,649,788 2,460,486
Municipal Employees Pension Fund 25,805,272 24,209,516
Municipal Employees Gratuity Fund 12,491,302 11,564,893
Samwu National Provident Fund 8,712,658 4,583,768
National Fund For Municipal Workers 5,114,006 0
54,773,024 42,818,664

Post-Retirement medical aid contributions

The municipality operates on 5 accredited
medical aid schemes, namely Bonhitas,
Hosmed, Key-Health, LA Health and
Samwumed. Pensioners may continue on the
option they belonged to on the day of their
retirement.

The last post-employment health care benefits
actuarial valuation in terms of JAS19 was done
by ARCH Actuarial Consulting for the period
ending 30 June 2012.

For the 2011/20%2 financiat period were no
actuaria valuation done and is staff benefit
provisioh based on the last valuation that was
undertook by ARCH Actuarial Consulting during
the 2009/2010 financial period. A new valuation
will be undertaken in the future in terms of IAS
19 or GRAP 25 when effective.

According to the last valuation did the accrued
liability amount to R 124,94 million as at 30
June 2010, The estimated projection for
2011/2012 amounted to R 154_44 million that
needs be recovered over three year period.
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POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

A recongiliation of Polockwane accrued liability
for the year ending 30 June 2012 is set out
below:

Year ended 30 June 2012

Opening balance

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected benefit payment
Expected closing balance
Actuarial (gain)/loss -

Actual closing balance

The amounts recognised in the statement of
financial position are as foliows:

Carrying value

Present value of the defined benefit obligation-
Wholly unfunded

Movements for the year

Cpening balance
Contributions - Current year

Closing balance
Key assumptions used

The projected unit credit method is used as the
standard valuation methodology for the
valuation done during the 200972010 financial
period. Plan assets wete valusd af current
market value as required by IAS19.

Assumptions used on last valuation on 30 Juae 2010,

Discount rates used
Medical inflation - lower than discount rate
Net effective discount rate

Other assumptions; Post retirement mortality
PA (90-1) Retirement age 65 years

Sensitivity analysis

The impact of a 1% change in the medical aid
inflation rate is reflected in the table
underneath.

Sensitivity to medical inflation

Base
-1%
1%

The employees of the Council as well as the
Council as employer, contribute to
municipal medical aids as listed below

Bonitas
Hosmed
Key Health
LA Health
Samwumed

2012 2011
138,585,875 124,945,775
7,441,274 6813415
12,702,854 11,372,251
{4,392,179) {4,445,656)
154,437,733 135,685,875
154,437,733 138,685,785
{154,457,733) (138,685,785)

(138,685,785)
(15,751,948}

(124,945 775)
{13,740,010)
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(154,437,733} {138,685,785)
9,22% 9.22%
7.25% 7.25%
1.83% 1.83%
125,178,769 125,178,769
109,504,000 109,804,000
143,885,000 143,885,000
378,867,769 378,867,769
2012 2011

7,455,108 651,971,967
3,789,138 3,628,954
9,370,997 8,873,986
2,218,060 1,821,121
1,535,109 940,720



POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

Total 24,368,502 . 667,236,749

46 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Municipality appeinted a Municipal Manager effectively from the 1 July 2012
The post was vacant for two months during the financial year.

47 GOING CONGERN

In terms of the accounting standard GRAP 1 paragraphs 27 to 30 the annual financial
staternents are prepared on a going concern basis, The assumption is based on the fact that
the municipality may invoke its power to levy additional rates or taxes to enable the
municipality to be considered as a going concern even though the municipality will be
operational for extended periods with negative net assets.

However based on the current solvency and liquidity ratio’s tests performed, the
municipality's ability to operate as a going concern is under threat.
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APPENDIX D

DETAILED SEGMENTAL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

2011 2011 2011 2012 2012 2012
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
[ncoma Expenditure Surplus! Income Expenditure Surplus!
(Deficit) (Deficit)
R R R R R R
. 171,531,635 (171,531,635)  Executive & Council - 164,412,970 (164,412,570
105,357,309 (105,357,303 Ceundl general expenses o 107,881,524 (107,891,528
2.039,21 (2,039,218}  Municipal Manager - 2,556,551 (2,566,557
56,282, 16 (56,282,160] 2010 E 44,854, 42 (44,854,420
7,852,954 (7.852,954}  Sedretariat & Records F 9,110,46! 9,110,465
740,826,403 192,395,482 548,430,920  Finance & Admin 943,748,321 243,105,151 695,643,168
Finance
489,991,589 489,981,584 Intergevemmental transfers 620,325,404 620,325,404
3,087 44 (3,087,441 Mankweng/Sebayeng - 2,675,749 (2,675,745
30,558,54( 50,245,547 (19,687,307 Finandial services 80,991,129 72,177,299 18,813,82]
211,928,611 2,842,01 209,087,603 Assessment rates 226,422,699 1,954,863 227,468,064
Human Resources
1,242,57 (1.242,573 0&wW - 1,183,24 (1,183,249
13,714,809 (13,714,909 Personnel - 23,613,814 (23,613,814
1,196,154 7,428,815 (6,232,857 Traiking 2,091,781 8,501,23: (6,408,446}
3,073,886 (3,073,866 Labour relations 3,978,83] (3,978,337
22,86 883 46 (860,597 Qceupational Health 44,68 982,67 {937,893
6f 16,509,065 {16,508,980f IT - 17,857,053 (17,897,052
Preperty Services
8,776,52 (8,778,528 Administration - 10,377,804 (10,377,906
1,760,473 (7,760,473 Civic Centre - 9,032,769 (8,032,760
Other Admin
8,863,174 (9,863,175 Com & public partidpation - 17,407,299 {17,407,299]
636,194 {536,194 Security & risk management o 2,450,914 {2,450912
5,179,321 {6,179,328} Project Management - 4,881,424 {4.881,424
1,209,213 {1,209,212] Intemal audit 3,600,73¢ (3,500,736
1,214,86 {1,214,868 Technical depot 3,231,05 (3,231,061
8,698,27. (8,698,272 Transport workshop - 7,028,29 (7,028,290
36,433,085 (36,433,055, Community security 40,803,13 (40,803,131
6,625,68 (6,525,687] Legal Services 7,136,984 (7,136,982
7,127,58] 8,070,71 (943,134 Procurement 872,62 9,290,12 (8,417,501
27,053,135 26,062,540 ' 980,595 Planning & Development 10,550,477 31,850,670 (21,310,183
23,497 86 4,003,604 19,494,363 Land use management 7,074,334 3,651,803 3,42253
180,39 7.158,76 (6,979,365)  Spatial Planning 248,31 9,318,589 (9,070,680;
3,374,87 4,608,461 (1,233,593  Building inspections 3,227,82 4,866,234 (1,638,514
1,547,361 (1,547.350)  Local aconomic development 3 2,349,32 (2,349,329
1,721,48 (1,721,493]  Community development 2,513,85 (2,513,858,
Q47 32 (947 326 tnvestment promation 682,52 (882,523
2,608,268 (2,609,264)  Economic planning 4.002,91i (4,002,914
3,465,37 (3,465,378 P 4,474,890 (4,474,909
- 4,084,001 (4,084,001) Healih . 5,369,832 (5,360,532
18677 (1:867743)  Ciinics 2.629,321 | (2,625,321
2,226,2;3 (2,226,258 Health inspection 2,740,51 (2,740,511
3,326,580 39,384,526 (36,057,946) Communily Services 3,262,753 53,236,890 (49,874,137
324,78 13,830,223 (13,505,438 Libraries 322,65 1455179 (14,228,829
Museums
717,64 (777,645 Art Museum 1,511,543 (1,511,542
110,98 9,889,364 (8. 778,381 Museym 104,071 8,890,811 {8,786,747
272,83 1,953,37 (1,680,530}  Community centres 304,27 1,855,634 1,551,265
634,59 4,755,837 (4,120,835}  Cemeteries 600,45 £,354,797 (4,754,345
Other Community
4,841,019 5,775,39 (3,934,383 Game Reserve 1,789,954 16,828,431 (15,039,444
141,95 1,302,614 (1,160,659 Showgrounds 144,01 1,224,00 (1,082,995
1,100,07 (1,100,071[ Cultural desk 3,018,964 (3,018.960
52,815 5,067,347 {5,004,531) Housing 28,74 6,947,382 (6,9%7,639)
’ 5,064,779 (5,064,776)  Administration 6,945,209 (6,845,209
58,78 2,13 56,647  Assisted schemes 26,32p 1,83 24,48
4,03¢ 43¢ 3,59 Letiing schemes 3.42] 33 3,08
18,964,897 69,819,407 (50,554,710}  Public Safety 19,410,436 74,769,052 {55,358,616)
5,215,764 31,702,35 (26,457,588}  Traffic 4,999,890 36,445,159 (30,446,292
244,70 22,567 48 22,322,784 Fire fighting 157,88 24,443 894 {24,286,009
2,784,19 (2,784,198 Disaster mahagement - 4,041,139 (4,041,136
13,492,424 5,078,91 8,413,504 Licensing 14,241,824 5,518,557 8,722,265
11,80 7,785,453 (7,773,648 Municipal confrol centre 10,82 5,319,27 (5,308,447
1,025,916 114,111,031 {113,081,114)  Parks & Recreation 1,662,858 135,607,918 (133,944,559
15,017 1,599,241 T {1,584,233]  Nursery 6,27, 2,359,689 (2,353,719
133,70 30,089,274 (28,965,572 Parks 111,18 3268251 (32,571,357
514,68 78,723,464 (¥8,208,773]  Sport & recreation 1,287,553 96,381,89 (96,094,343
366,501 3,689,04 (3,322,537 Swimming pools 257,97, 4,183,51 3,925,540
- 510,173 (510,173}  Environmental Protection ' - 455,074 (555,074)
L 510,173 (510173}  Air pollution i 555074 | (555,074)
44,289,584 53,236,738 {8,947,154) Waste Management 47,830,203 70,247,463 (22,417,260;
44,289,58 45,300, 34 (1,610,764  Refuse Removal 4?,330,201 58.477.923 [ (10,647,720
r 1 7,336,393 (7,338,380 Street & side walking cleaning 11,769,54 (11,769,540
41,028,421 41,464,264 (425,844) Waste water management 29,311,057 51,431,343 (12,120,287
3,508,173 25,790,154 (23,281,979]  Sewer purification 70574 30,027,28 (29,956,714
37,530,244 7,325,031 30,205212  Sewer reficulation 39,240,483 11,862,72 27,377,751
4,806,384 (4,806,384}  Storm water 6,658,47 (6,658,470
2,542,689 {2,542,693)  Public toilets 2,882,85 (2,882,859
8,081,177 77,610,946 (69,548,768)  Road Transport 7,609,326 95,813,159 (88,303,833
| 74',023,5%‘3 (74,023,560] . Roads & streets ’ 94,132,311 (94,132,317
8,061,17 3,587,38 4,473,793  Vehide licensing & testing 7,609,32 1,780,84 | 5,528,464
129,057,548 180,662,280 (51,604,732}  Water distributicn 165,503,351 197,887,790 132,384,435}
| 126,057,541 47,952,389 81,105,159  Water Distrbution71 165,503.351 52,790,799 | 112,712,563




APPENDIX D
DETAILED SEGMENTAL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

2011 Z011 2011 2012 2012 2012
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actuat
Income Expenditure Surplus/ Income Expenditure Surplusf
{Deficit) {Ceficit)
R R R R R
119,527,153 I (119.527.165]  Water provision 129,946,?3§ | (129,946,738
13,182,72 {13,182,725|  Water Purification 5,150,26 (15,150,253
441,151,677 397,928,582 43,273,085 Electricity 553,545,874 487,047,300 72,499,574
7,883,09] (7.863985] Workshop -
441,151,677 378,278,404 61.87327] Distribution 559,456,107 482,244,633 77,210,474
10,766,18 (10,766,181)  Street Lighting 91,76F 4,802,661 (4,710,856
74,000 233218 (1995,219)  Other 24,000 67,211 {43,211
24,00p 223218 | (199219}  Airport 24,004 67,211 | 43211
1,454,885,953 1,374,202 171 80,683,783  Total 1,798,489 499 1,623,459,205 175,030,294
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